December 12, 2014

The Director of the National Park Service is pleased to send you the following announcements and
actions on properties for the National Register of Historic Places. For further information contact Edson
Beall via voice (202) 354-2255, or E-mail: Edson Beall@nps.gov

This and past Weekly Lists are also available here: http://www.nps.gov/history/nr/nrlist.htm
Our physical location address is:

National Park Service 2280, 8th floor
National Register of Historic Places
1201 "I" (Eye) Street, NW,
Washington D.C. 20005

WEEKLY LIST OF ACTIONS TAKEN ON PROPERTIES: 12/01/14 THROUGH 12/05/14

KEY: State, County, Property Name, Address/Boundary, City, Vicinity, Reference Number, NHL, Action,
Date, Multiple Name

GEORGIA, COBB COUNTY,
Smith--Manning House,
360 Manning Rd.,
Marietta, 14000969,
LISTED, 12/02/14

HAWAII, HONOLULU COUNTY,

Kunia Camp,

Roughly bounded by Kunia & Pu'u Drives,
Kunia vicinity, 14000970,

LISTED, 12/01/14

IOWA, HARDIN COUNTY,

Kurtz, Glenn and Nell, Lustron Home and Garage,
2017 Washington Ave.,

lowa Falls, 14000971,

LISTED, 12/02/14

MASSACHUSETTS, ESSEX COUNTY,

Point Neighborhood Historic District,

Roughly bounded by Peabody, Congress, Chase & Lafayette Sts.,
Salem, 14000972,

LISTED, 12/02/14

MASSACHUSETTS, PLYMOUTH COUNTY,



First Parish Church of Plymouth,
Address Restricted

Plymouth, 14000973,

LISTED, 12/02/14

MASSACHUSETTS, SUFFOLK COUNTY,
Gridley Street Historic District,
Address Restricted

Boston, 14000974,

LISTED, 12/03/14

MASSACHUSETTS, SUFFOLK COUNTY,
Lyman, Theodore, School,

30 Gove St,,

Boston, 14000975,

LISTED, 12/02/14

MICHIGAN, GRATIOT COUNTY,

Saint Louis Downtown Historic District,

N. Mill St., W. Saginaw & W. Center Aves.,
St. Louis, 14000976,

LISTED, 12/03/14

MICHIGAN, JACKSON COUNTY,
Peoples National Bank Building,
101 E. Michigan Ave.,

Jackson, 14000977,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NEBRASKA, HALL COUNTY,
Burlington Railroad Depot,
603 N. Plum St.,

Grand Island, 14001013,
LISTED, 12/02/14

NEW JERSEY, CAPE MAY COUNTY,
Rufwud Cottage,

394 93rd St.,

Stone Harbor Borough, 14000979,
LISTED, 12/02/14

NEW YORK, COLUMBIA COUNTY,
Barringer--Overbaugh--Lasher House,
321 Main St.,



Germantown, 14000980,
LISTED, 12/02/14

NEW YORK, DUTCHESS COUNTY,
Dover Stone Church,

Stone Church Ln.,

Dover Plains, 14000981,
LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, CASWELL COUNTY,
Holderness, William Henry and Sarah, House,
3082 US 158 W.,

Yanceyville vicinity, 14000982,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, DURHAM COUNTY,
Umstead, D.C., Store and House,

3500 Hall Rd.,

Bahama vicinity, 14000983,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, FORSYTH COUNTY,
Old German Baptist Brethern Church,
4916 Charnel Rd.,

Winston-Salem, 14000984,

LISTED, 12/01/14

NORTH CAROLINA, GUILFORD COUNTY,
Enterprise Building,

305 N. Main St.,

High Point, 14000985,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, GUILFORD COUNTY,
Proximity Print Works,

1700 Fairview St.,

Greensboro, 14000986,

LISTED, 12/01/14

(Greensboro MPS)

NORTH CAROLINA, LENOIR COUNTY,
Standard Drug No. 2,

100 S. Queen St.,

Kinston, 14000987,



LISTED, 12/01/14

NORTH CAROLINA, MARTIN COUNTY,

Everetts Historic District,

Roughly bounded by Barnhill, Peel, Main, Ayers & James Sts.,
Everetts, 14000988,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, MECKLENBURG COUNTY,
Savona Mill,

528 S. Turner Ave.,

Charlotte, 14000989,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, NEW HANOVER COUNTY,

Brookwood Historic District,

Roughly bounded by Market St., Keaton Ave., Burnt Mill Cr. & Wallace Park,
Wilmington, 14000990,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, STANLY COUNTY,

Albemarle Graded School--Central Elementary School,
219 E. North St.,

Albemarle, 14000991,

LISTED, 12/02/14

NORTH CAROLINA, UNION COUNTY,
Wingate Commercial Historic District,
203, 205, 207-209, 211 Main St.,
Wingate, 14000992,

LISTED, 12/01/14

NORTH CAROLINA, VANCE COUNTY,
Barker House,

1785 Barker Rd.,

Henderson vicinity, 14000993,
LISTED, 12/01/14

OHIO, FRANKLIN COUNTY,
Gaetz Music House,
49-53 W. Long St.,
Columbus, 14000995,
LISTED, 12/03/14



OHIO, FRANKLIN COUNTY,
Ohio Finance Building,
39-47 W. Long St.,
Columbus, 14000994,
LISTED, 12/02/14

OKLAHOMA, OKLAHOMA COUNTY,
Main Street Arcade,

629 W. Main,

Oklahoma City, 14001028,
LISTED, 12/05/14

OKLAHOMA, OKLAHOMA COUNTY,

Miller's Boulevard Historic District,

Bounded by NW. 16th St., W. Park Place, N. May & N. Villa Aves.,
Oklahoma City, 14001029,

LISTED, 12/04/14

PENNSYLVANIA, LYCOMING COUNTY,
Original Little League Field,

1695 W. 4th St.,

Williamsport, 14000996,

LISTED, 12/03/14

TENNESSEE, COCKE COUNTY,
Leadvale Coaling Station and Cut-off,
Address Restricted,

Newport vicinity, 14000997,

LISTED, 12/01/14

TENNESSEE, WASHINGTON COUNTY,

Johnson City Warehouse and Commerce Historic District (Boundary Decrease),
107 N. Boone, 100-102, 104 Montgomery & 200, 204, 210, 214 Montgomery Sts.,
Johnson City, 14000998,

LISTED, 12/02/14

VERMONT, WINDSOR COUNTY,

Windsor Village Historic District (Boundary Increase ll),

Along Main & State Sts., Village Green, Depot Ave., Connecticut R., Paradise Park,
Windsor, 14001036,

LISTED, 12/01/14

WYOMING, LARAMIE COUNTY,
Dubois Block,


Devin.Colman
Highlight


Blk. 2, Park Addition,
Cheyenne, 14000999,
LISTED, 12/02/14



NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in National Register
Bulletin, How to Complete the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form. If any item does not apply to the property being
documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only
categories and subcategories from the instructions.

1. Name of Property

Historic name: Windsor Village Historic District (Additional Documentation and Boundary
Increase, 2014)

Other names/site number: N/A

Name of related multiple property listing:

N/A

(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing

2. Location
Street & number: Along Main Street, Depot Avenue, State Street, around Village Green,
small secondary streets, extending east to the Connecticut River and west along State Street,
including Paradise Park.

City or town: Windsor  State: VT County: Windsor

Not For Publication:| n/a Vicinity: | n/a

3. State/Federal Agency Certification
As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

I hereby certify that this _X _nomination ____ request for determination of eligibility meets
the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic
Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property X meets __ does not meet the National Register Criteria. |
recommend that this property be considered significant at the following
level(s) of significance:

___national X_statewide ___local
Applicable National Register Criteria:

XA B XC b

Signature of certifying official/Title: Date

State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government
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National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018

Windsor Village Historic District (Additional Windsor, Vermont
Documentation and Boundary Increase, 2014)

Name of Property County and State

In my opinion, the property _ meets __ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting official: Date

Title : State or Federal agency/bureau
or Tribal Government

4. National Park Service Certification

I hereby certify that this property is:

__entered in the National Register

__determined eligible for the National Register
__determined not eligible for the National Register
__removed from the National Register

___other (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action

5. Classification
Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply.)

Private: X
Public - Local X
Public — State

Public — Federal X

Category of Property
(Check only one box.)

Building(s)

Sections 1-6 page 2
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Name of Property County and State

District X

Site

Structure

Object

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
238 58 buildings
4 1 sites
1 1 structures
0 0 objects
243 60 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register __101

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions

(Enter categories from instructions.)
LANDSCAPE: plaza

LANDSCAPE: park
TRANSPORTATION: rail-related
TRANSPORTATION: road-related
COMMERCE/TRADE: business
COMMERCE/TRADE: specialty store
COMMERCE/TRADE: department store
COMMERCE/TRADE: restaurant
COMMERCE/TRADE: warehouse

Sections 1-6 page 3
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Windsor Village Historic District (Additional
Documentation and Boundary Increase, 2014)
Name of Property

RELIGION: religious facility

RELIGION: church-related residence

EDUCATION: library

EDUCATION: school

DOMESTIC: single dwelling

DOMESTIC: multiple dwelling

DOMESTIC: secondary structure

DOMESTIC: hotel

SOCIAL: meeting hall

SOCIAL: civic

GOVERNMENT: city hall

GOVERNMENT: fire station

GOVERNMENT: post office

GOVERNMENT: courthouse

GOVERNMENT: correctional facility

HEALTH CARE: hospital

HEALTH CARE: medical business / office

RECREATION & CULTURE: outdoor recreation
INDUSTRY / PROCESSING / EXTRACTION: manufacturing facility
INDUSTRY / PROCESSING / EXTRACTION: waterworks
INDUSTRY / PROCESSING / EXTRACTION: industrial storage

Current Functions

(Enter categories from instructions.)
LANDSCAPE: plaza

LANDSCAPE: park
TRANSPORTATION: rail-related
COMMERCE/TRADE: business
COMMERCE/TRADE: professional
COMMERCE/TRADE: specialty store
COMMERCE/TRADE: restaurant
RELIGION: religious facility
RELIGION: church-related residence
EDUCATION: library

EDUCATION: school

DOMESTIC: single dwelling
DOMESTIC: multiple dwelling
DOMESTIC: secondary structure
RECREATION & CULTURE: outdoor recreation
RECREATION & CULTURE: museum
SOCIAL: meeting hall

SOCIAL: civic

Sections 1-6 page 4
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Name of Property County and State

GOVERNMENT: post office

GOVERNMENT: courthouse

HEALTH CARE: medical business / office

HEALTH CARE: sanitarium

INDUSTRY / PROCESSING / EXTRACTION: manufacturing facility
INDUSTRY / PROCESSING / EXTRACTION: waterworks
INDUSTRY / PROCESSING / EXTRACTION: industrial storage

Sections 1-6 page 5
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Name of Property County and State

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)
Colonial
Early Republic
Mid-18" Century
Late Victorian
Late 19" and 20" Century Revivals
Late 19" and early 20" Century Revivals
Modern Movement
Other

Materials: (enter categories from instructions.)
Principal exterior materials of the property: Brick, concrete, stone, granite, slate, asphalt,
steel, rubber, fiberglass, brick, weatherboard, vinyl, aluminum, marble

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance and condition of the property. Describe
contributing and noncontributing resources if applicable. Begin with a summary paragraph that
briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as its location, type, style,
method of construction, setting, size, and significant features. Indicate whether the property has
historic integrity.)

Summary Paragraph

The Town of Windsor, Vermont, is located on the eastern border of the state approximately sixty
miles north of Vermont’s southern border with Massachusetts. The eastern edge of the town
boundary follows the western bank of the Connecticut River. Windsor Village, containing the
primary concentration of residential, commercial and industrial resources in the town, abuts the
Connecticut River with direct access from the downtown commercial area across the river to
Cornish, New Hampshire, via the Cornish-Windsor Covered Bridge (listed in the National
Register in 1976.)

The Windsor Village Historic District, as updated and expanded in this nomination, includes
contiguous residential, commercial and industrial sections along Main Street, Depot Avenue,
State Street, around Village Green, small secondary streets, extending east to the Connecticut

Section 7 page 6
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Name of Property County and State

River and west along State Street, including Paradise Park. Within the district are 243
architecturally and/or historically significant historic resources which reflect the prosperity of the
village from 1770 through 1958. Architecturally, these resources represent a broad spectrum of
domestic, religious, commercial, and quasi-public building types. Stylistically, the buildings are
predominantly Federal for the domestic and Italianate Revival for the commercial with
significant examples of the Georgian, Classical, Greek Revival, Gothic Revival, Romanesque,
High Victorian Gothic, and Georgian Revival.

While Main Street functions as the major north-south axis of the district with Depot Avenue and
State Street through and including Court Square tangent at its midsection, the street's slightly
winding course prevents a continuous visual cohesiveness. Throughout the district, however,
cohesiveness is achieved visually by strategically positioned architectural landmarks which act
both as either axial pivots or terminal focal points connecting sections of the district with each
other and as transition points from one section of the village streetscape to the next. Overall, the
historic district retains integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and
association.

Narrative Description

The Narrative Description is divided into two components: an Amendment updating the existing
documentation of the Windsor Village Historic District, and a Boundary Increase documenting
the residential, industrial and recreational resources surrounding the existing Windsor Village
Historic District.

Amendment Overview

The original Windsor Village Historic District nomination documented only the most
architecturally and historically significant properties on and in the vicinity of Main Street.
Neither accessory buildings nor non-contributing resources were identified or included in the
original nomination. 78 properties, all identified as contributing resources, were originally
registered on April 23, 1975. An amendment in 1997 increased the boundaries and added three
additional contributing resources, for a total of 81 contributing resources in the historic district.

This Amendment updates the description for each of the previously listed properties (#1-#81). As
of October 2014, 8 of the 81 previously listed resources have been demolished (#s 18, 22, 24,
244, 26, 27, 44 and 49.) A new building now occupies the site of #22 and is identified as such,
while the other 7 sites remain undeveloped. The Amendment also documents the accessory
buildings and non-contributing resources that were not counted in 1975, bringing the total
number of resources in the Amendment area to 112: 100 contributing buildings; 1 contributing
structure; 10 non-contributing buildings; and 1 non-contributing structure.

Section 7 page 7
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Name of Property County and State

Inventory of Resources Located in the Amendment Area:

1. Emery House/9 Main Street, 1921. Contributing.

This is a 2 ¥.-story, Queen Anne style house with clapboards and flat corner boards sitting on a
brick foundation. The hipped roof, covered with fiberglass shingles, has a large pedimented
gable dormer facing to the west over the main entrance. On the north facade is a narrow, 2 %-
story gable roofed ell with a canted east wall and decorative Queen-Anne style windows. There
are small paired decorative 1/1 wood sash windows in the front gable end and a small semi-
circular fixed sash in the north gable. The front entrance is covered by a hipped roof porch
supported by turned posts with scroll sawn brackets at the top of the post. The porch wraps
around to the north facade and has a railing of straight rectangular balusters with a capped wood
rail. There is a lattice skirt below the porch floor. The fenestration is irregular with 1/1 windows
having the top sash with muntins forming smaller lights surrounding a single large light; plain
1/1 wood sash windows and on the front fagcade of the first floor is a large picture window
formed by a large center fixed window with narrower 1/1 fixed windows on each side. On the
east facade there are two fixed decorative Queen Anne windows on the first floor. At the top of
the middle window is a fixed sash of the same decorative window of the large light surrounded
by smaller lights. There is a hipped roof one-story, enclosed porch protruding from the east
facade. (Photos 134 & 135)

la. Garage, c. 1950-70s. Non-Contributing due to age.
Simple, two-bay gable front frame modern garage. (Photos 134 & 135)

2. Cabot House/15 Main Street, c. 1900. Contributing

This is a very dynamic, large Queen Anne style house with narrow clapboards built on ashlar
faced concrete block and a slate covered hipped roof. There are narrow flat corner boards and the
exterior wall surface flairs out between the first and second floors. Over the front entrance is a
hipped roof dormer sided with diamond cut wood shingles and two small casement windows
with fixed diamond lights. The front (west) facade has a recessed opening at the northwest corner
and a 2 ¥2-story gable roof ell protruding from the southwest side of the fagcade. The pedimented
gable end is decorated with diamond cut wood shingles and a 1/1 wood sash window. There is a
2-story bay window with a gable roof on the north fagade with the gable end decorated with
diamond shingles and a diamond casement window. On the north facade is a 2- story bay
window placed at the end of an ell protruding from the main block. The bay is topped with a
gable roof with the end decorated the same as the other gable ends. At the rear of the house, a
rear entrance is recessed below the second story overhang. The majority of the windows are 1/1
wood sash and some of them have 2/2 fixed pane storm windows. (Photos 135 & 253)

2a. Barn, c. 1900. Contributing.

This is a large, 1 Y2-story, slate gable roof barn with a smaller 1 ¥-story ell extending from the
southwest corner of the front facade. The barn is located behind the main house. There are two
garage openings on the west facade of the main block and on the north fagade of the ell. The barn

Section 7 page 8
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Name of Property County and State

is covered with the same narrow clapboards and corner boards as the house. On the first level of
the north fagade of the main block are two 2/2 wood sash windows towards the west and two
smaller openings used in horse stalls. (Photo 253)

3. Lull-McClary House/19 Main Street, 1806/1860. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, brick, Federal style house with shallow hipped roof. The 3 x 5 bay structure has
a sidehall entrance on the west elevation with a low arched doorway and double-leaf doors. An
open shed roof porch supported by chamfered posts with scroll-sawn brackets at the top wraps
around the west (front) and south elevations of the main block. The windows are 6/6 double
hung wood sash with the first story windows being taller than the second story windows. The
hipped roof has symmetrically placed interior chimneys with tall capped chimney stacks on the
north and south roof slopes. The porch is enclosed at the southeast corner of the main block.
There is a 1 ¥2-story clapboard sided, gabled slate roof wing extending from the east (rear)
elevation of the main block. It is primarily fenestrated with 6/6 wood sash windows. This is
connected to a 1 %2-story, slate gable-roofed barn with a shuttered cupola at the gable peak. The
barn is covered with narrow wood clapboards with flat corner boards. The three window
openings on the south fagade have been covered with particleboard. There is a large barn door
opening at the southwest corner of the barn.

The house was built in 1806 by Colonel Jesse Lull and owned by the McClary family from 1891
to 1965. (Photo 254)

4. Mills-Coolidge House, 21 Main Street, 1806/1870. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, low-pitched gable roof, Federal style house with 3 x 5 bays sitting on a large
stone block foundation. The fenestration is irregularly set with 2/2 wood sash windows and
splayed lintels. The sidehall entrance is in the northwest bay of the gable end. An oval wood
fanlight is set in the pedimented gable peak. There is a flat roof porch extending across the front
facade that is supported by large chamfered posts with curved brackets and cutout valence
between the posts. The paired entrance doors are arched, and the two sets of French doors open
onto the front porch. There are two tall chimney stacks protruding from the south roof plane.
There is a one-story bay in the last two bays of the south fagade. A 2-story, gable-roofed wing
extends from the east (rear) elevation. It is 4 x 2 bays with a flat-roof porch extending across the
south elevation and fenestrated with 2/2 wood sash windows.

The house was erected by Luther Mills and later owned by Carlos Coolidge, an attorney in
Windsor who specialized in patents and served as governor of Vermont from 1848 to 1850. (No
photo)

5. Dr. Trask House, 25 Main Street, c. 1796. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, 5 x 2 bay Federal style I-house with a slate gable roof and entrance centered on
the west (front) elevation. The front entrance has a decorative crown with dentil molding
covering a semi-circular fanlight and flanked by fluted pilasters. The house sits on a low
foundation and is now covered with vinyl siding. The house is primarily fenestrated with 2/2

Section 7 page 9
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double-hung windows, with occasional 6/6 double-hung windows. Windows on the first floor
feature entablature with simple frieze. There is a two-story, gable roof addition attached to the
rear (east) facade. Projecting from the northeast corner of the addition is a one-story gable roofed
breezeway connecting to a 1 %2-story barn that has two large openings for automobiles on the
south (side) elevation. The breezeway and barn are clad with narrow clapboards.

The house was built in 1796 by Dr. Nahum Trask, a veteran of the Revolutionary War, and the
first doctor to serve the Windsor State Prison. (Photo 255)

6. 29 Main Street, c. 1900. Contributing.

This is a large, gable roof Queen Anne style house sitting on a brick foundation and clad in
narrow clapboards. The house is irregularly fenestrated with the majority of the windows being
1/1, double-hung wood sash; some feature Queen Anne windows in the upper sash. These are
apparent in the front gable peak on the west facade where they are surrounded by imbricated
wood shingles. A large shed roof porch wraps around the west (front) and south (side) elevations
of the house and is supported by Tuscan columns. A railing of plain rectangular balusters with a
capped rail runs between the columns. There is a gable roofed bay window on the south (side)
elevation with two small square paired decorative windows surrounded by imbricated shingles in
the dormer peak. On the second floor of the front facade is a small pair of diamond pane
windows and flat panel with trim molding between the windows. (No photo)

6a. Garage, c. 1920. Contributing.
Behind the house is a 3-bay shed roof garage with clapboard siding. It retains its original
fenestrated and wood paneled hinged doors. (No photo)

7. Patrick House, 33 Main Street, c. 1805/1860. Contributing.

This is a 2 ¥%-story, 3 x 5 bay, brick Federal style house with slate gable roof and side hall
entrance on the west (front) facade. The paired arch-top entry doors sit within a segmental brick
arched opening, and the decorative door surround appears to have been removed. The gable
peaks are clapboard sided and there is a fanlight in the west (front) gable peak. The fenestration
is 6/1 double hung sash windows. There is a 2-story shed roof addition on the rear elevation. (No
photo)

8. Mills House, 35 Main Street, c. 1850. Contributing.

This Gothic Revival house features a steeply pitched, slate gabled roof, is 3 x 4 bays, and is clad
with narrow wood clapboards. On the west (front) facade the side hall entrance is recessed with
full-length sidelights and narrow multi-light transom. The two other bays have full-length
windows with nine divided lights. The windows are surrounded with a wide entablature. The
balance of the fenestration is 3/3 double hung wood sash windows that suggest they were
installed c. 1930. There is a 6/6 wood sash window in the gable peak of the rear extension that
may be an original window. The front gable peak has scroll sawn trefoil verge boards. The same
boards are also present in a gabled wall dormer on the south (side) elevation and on a gabled
projection on the north (side) elevation. The house sits on a rough stone foundation. Extending
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from the east (rear) facade of the main block is a 1 ¥2-story, 2 bay wide, extension that served as
living space and also as a small barn on the bottom level in the rear. There is an enclosed
fenestrated porch located on the south elevation of the ell between the main block and the
extension. A modern oriel window has been installed on the south elevation of the extension.
The extension is covered with asphalt shingles and there are two small shed roof dormers on the
south roof plane. Luther Mills erected the house circa 1850. (No photo)

8a. Utility Barn, c. 1880. Contributing.

This is a small one-story, wood clapboard, gable-roofed barn. The south (front) gable end has
been extended with a narrow shed roof covering two sets of swinging doors. There is a 6/6 wood
sash window on the east elevation. (No photo)

9. 37 Main Street, c. 1920. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥-story duplex with a standing-seam metal gable roof and eaves-front entrances.
There is a shed roof dormer centered on each roof slope. The 6 x 4 bay structure has 2/1 wood
sash windows and sits on a brick foundation. The walls are clad with vinyl siding. A large
concrete pad extends across the west (front) facade. (Photo 256)

10. 39 Main Street, c. 1845. Contributing.

This is a small 1 ¥%-story Greek Revival style house at the northeast corner of Main Street and
Everett Lane. The 3 x 4 bay main block is covered with narrow wood clapboards and has a gable
roof. The sidehall entrance is deeply recessed with full sidelights and a narrow fixed transom of
small rectangular lights. Above the entranceway is a deticulated pediment supported by pilasters.
There are cornice returns and wide fascia boards under the eaves of the main roof slopes. The
fenestration is 6/6 wood sash windows and the house sits on a brick foundation. There is a cross
gable located centrally on the south (side) elevation with a single window with a false balcony
railing in the gable peak. The property slopes downward from the main block and a 1 %-story
gable roof wing extends from the rear (east) elevation indented from the main block. A shed roof
porch with square posts and scroll-sawn brackets extends along the south elevation of the wing
and covers the both bays. A small gable roof dormer protrudes from the south roof slope of the
wing. Attached to the east (rear) elevation of the wing is a 1 ¥-story gable roof barn that is
covered in narrow clapboards and has a large opening on the left side level of its south elevation.
This opening contains a modern overhead garage door. On the first level of the barn the windows
are narrow 1/1 wood sash and there is a 2/2 wood sash window in the gable end. (Photo 257)

11. Old South Church Congregational Parsonage, 41 Main Street, c. 1860. Contributing.
This is a modest Queen Anne style, 1%2-story house with a steeply pitched gable roof with
narrow wood clapboards sitting on a brick foundation. The main block of the house is on a north-
south axis with a 1 %2-story ell extending to the east (rear). On the west (front) facade is a 1 Y-
story gable roof ell that projects out and has a small bay window in the center of the facade.
There is a shed roof porch that spans the area from the north side of the front ell along the width
of the front facade. The porch roof is supported by turned posts with turned balusters with
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capped rail running between the posts. A small gable roof covers the porch main entrance. The
fenestration is 6/6 wood sash windows. (Photos 1 & 258)

12. Baptist Parsonage, 43 Main Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This house served as the parsonage for the first Baptist Church in Windsor, which was built
where the garden house of the Evarts House was later located. It is a simple, vernacular, tri-gable
ell house. The 1 ¥-story structure’s main block is on a north/south axis with an ell extending
westward from the north end of the block. The ell has a bay window on the west (front) facade.
Between the ell and the main block is a one-story, fenestrated enclosed porch with a shed roof.
The house is clad in pressboard shingles, the roof covering is metal and the windows are 6/6
wood sash. There is a gable-roofed addition extending from the rear (east) elevation that may
have been a small barn. It is now used as storage and has a garage opening. (Photo 1)

13. 47 Main Street, c. 1900. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, Foursquare style house with a slate shingled hipped roof sitting on a brick
foundation covered in vinyl siding. On the west (front) facade an enclosed vestibule with a low-
pitched gable roof supported by square posts covers the front door. To right is a large fixed pane
window with a leaded glass panel at the top. On the south (side) elevation are two hipped-roofed
bay windows and to the rear is a one-story enclosed porch covering an ancillary entrance to the
house. There are pedimented, gable-roofed dormers on each roof slope. The land drops off to the
rear of the house and provides for a full basement level. The house has with modern 6/6 double
hung sash windows with a Queen Anne style window on the north (side) elevation and 2/1
windows in the dormers. (Photo 1)

14. The OId Unitarian Church, 53 Main Street, 1846. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥-story Gothic Revival style church building that is now used as an art gallery for a
private individual. It has a steeply pitched gable roof, is covered in wood clapboard siding and
sits on a high brick foundation. The roof has a wide overhang with cornice returns with simple
brackets under the eaves on a wide fascia board. The building is fenestrated with large
rectangular stained glass windows with lancet panels above drip moldings. An octagonal spire
with gothic detailing rises from a square base at the front of the gable peak. The west (front)
entrance is built out from the main facade with a small pediment on the hipped roof covering a
large gothic arch with cutout design over the front doors. There is a small window in the front
gable peak with four lancet openings and drip molding. (Photo 259)

15. United States Post Office, 57 Main Street, 1852. Contributing.

Designed by Ammi B. Young of Boston, the Post Office and Federal Courthouse is an over-
scaled and rigidly symmetrical, Italianate Revival style, 2 Y4-story, rectangular block of brick,
load bearing construction set on a rubblestone foundation with bevel edged, cut granite blocks
above grade. Five bays across the front and three bays across the side elevations, the three center
bays of the front elevation are close set and form a slightly projecting pavilion. The building is
divided visually by a projecting entablature-like belt course into an elevated ground story with
round-arched fenestration and a monumentally scaled second story Piano Nobile. Three
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elongated rectangular windows with pedimented hoods supported by consoles differentiate the
center pavilion’s second story from the other second story bays with their smaller scale
rectangular windows and separate transom-like windows directly above. The building’s shallow
hip roof is supported at the eaves by a stamped tin modillion cornice and is crowned by a square
cupola with an octagonal dome and gold-leafed, spread winged American eagle. Two
chimneystacks with modillion cornices are centered on each side elevation and on the projecting
center pavilion. The quoins, window architraves, pedimented window hoods, and exaggerated
voussoirs which continue down the sides around the round-arched fenestration were executed in
cast iron to imitate cut stone and are the building’s most distinguishing architectural features.

Ammi B. Young (1798-1874) designed the second Vermont State House and went on to become
the first supervising architect for the U.S. Department of the Treasury building. Windsor’s post
office and courthouse remains the oldest federal post office in continuous use in the United
States. A nearly identical building is located in Rutland, VT, and now serves as the Rutland
Library. (Photo 21)

16. Tuxbury Block, 61 Main Street, 1898. Contributing.

Erected by Albert Tuxbury, the building is a rigidly symmetrical, flat-roofed, 2-story, rectangular
block of brick, load-bearing construction with a recessed, cast iron storefront centered on the
west (front) facade. The building’s 2 stories are heightened across the west (front) and north
(side) elevations by a high parapet punctuated with blind narrow slots. The parapet is enclosed at
the corners by square battlements and is interrupted on the north (side) elevation by two equally
spaced chimneystacks that corbel out from the wall just below. On the front elevation two similar
stacks with narrow round-headed slots define the three center bays of the elevation and frame a
plain, frieze-like section of the parapet below a raised section of corbelled and slotted cornice. A
terra cotta plaque reading “Tuxbury Block” is set into the frieze. The three center bays of the
elevation are punctuated by three windows with contiguous round-arched hoods framing
decorative terra cotta lunettes and are flanked by paired, flat-arched windows recessed in square
panels with modillion cornices. The individual impost blocks of the arches are repeated in the
flanking bays. The exterior and the interior of the building survive in a largely original state of
preservation. On the rear (east) elevation, all the window openings have large sheet metal
shutters that acted as protection against theft and fire. The windows on the second level are
primarily 2/1 double hung wood sash. (Photo 21)

17. Stone/Tracy Block, 63 Main Street, 1870. Contributing.

This is a large building sits at the northeast corner of Main Street and Depot Street. It consists of
three rectangular brick-faced sections that diminish in size as they extend eastward along Depot
Avenue. The first section, which fronts Main Street, is 3 x 4 bays and three stories tall. The
second section is 3 bays across and four stories tall. The last section, which has a low-pitched
gable roof, is 3 x 2 bays and three stories tall. The west (front) facade is capped by a heavy,
ornately detailed cornice which is supported by large brackets at each end. The first level has a
glass storefront in a metal frame with center entrance topped by an entablature. The upper levels
are recessed in the brickwork and each window has a segmental hood arch and a protruding sill.
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On the south (side) elevation, each bay is divided into a recessed brick panel that rises the full
height of the building. The second block of the building fronts Depot Avenue and has a center
entrance on the ground floor. All the window and door openings have rough face granite lintels
and sills. The last block is narrower than the first two blocks and also fronts Depot Avenue, with
a large metal fire escape across the fagcade. The windows and doors have granite sills and lintels
also. The entire building has retained the original 2/2 double hung wood sash windows. (Photo
21)

18. Site of former Amsden Block, 23 Depot Avenue. Demolished.*

This building burned on March 4, 1987 and was demolished. Nothing has been built in its place.
*The building that used to stand here was #18 in the 1975 nomination, and that number is
retained here for consistency. This vacant lot, however, is not counted as a contributing or non-
contributing resource in this update.

19. Central Vermont Railway Freight Station, 27 Depot Avenue, c. 1850. Contributing.
This is a 1 ¥2-story, gable roofed building clad in wood clapboards. A one story, shed-roofed
addition projects from the south end of the building and continuously along the east side are a
series of small sheds with roofs starting just under the eave. The freight station is an example of
the first generation of Central Vermont Railroad architecture. (Photo 2)

20. Central Vermont Railway Station, 26 Depot Avenue, c. 1901. Contributing.

This is a vernacular Romanesque-style railroad station building. A 1 Y2-story building of brick
construction, the long, rectangular form of the station is dominated by an expansive hip roof
which overhangs the walls 6 ¥ feet and is supported by bracketed, wood outriggers. The west
(front) and east (trackside) elevations are punctuated by round-arched fenestration, three doors
with flanking windows on the east and alternating doors and windows on the west. Near the
south end of the west facade, the eaves line of the hip roof is broken by a projecting gable with
decorative verge boards in the peak which covers a projecting pavilion with a pair of round-
arched windows. On the east elevation in a corresponding position a station agent’s window
projects in a similar fashion but also projects through the hip roof, without breaking the line of
the eaves, and terminates in the form of a gable-roofed dormer. The building’s round-arched
fenestration is visually tied together by a belt course slightly below impost level. This station
building replaced the original 1847 station that burned and was built by the Burlington
contractors of Mason & Company. The window and doorsills are Barre granite and buff pressed
brick was used as siding. (No photo)

21. Putnam Block, 85-89 Main Street, 1914. Contributing.

This is a 2-story commercial building with recessed entrances set in large glass storefronts. The
storefronts have top panels that have been set with Formica instead of glass while the bottom
panels are now covered with plywood panels. The large glass panes are set in metal frames. At
the top of the fagade is a bracketed cornice. The building is clad in brick with granite water table.
The side windows have granite window sills. (Photos 3 & 21)
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22. Site of the former Colby Block, 105 Main Street, 1831. Demolished.

Mascoma Bank Building, 2000. Non-contributing due to age.
The Colby Block building was in very poor condition and was demolished in 1999. Mascoma
Bank built a new building replicating the original Colby Block on the site in 1999-2000. The
brick, five bay, eaves-front gable block has a central arched door flanked by long window
openings capped by granite lintels. The brick sides of the block project up through the steep
gable roof and end in double brick end chimneys. It is now attached to the reconstructed and
relocated Benjamin Bell House (23) next door. (Photo 3)

23. Benjamin Bell House/Sherman Block/Mascoma Bank, 107-113 Main Street,
€.1796/1999. Non-contributing due to alterations.
This house was originally constructed c. 1796 by Benjamin Bell, who was a minister at the Old
South Church. Later known as the Sherman Block, the building was moved to its current site in
1999 from slightly to the east and connected to the new brick Mascoma Bank building (22). All
building material was removed except for the original timber frame of the structure. It is a 2 %-
story rectangular, five bay eaves front gable roofed block with simple cornice returns on the end.
It is attached to the brick bank building on the north by a lower, 2-story frame connector that is
recessed from the front facades of the two main blocks. The modern, glass and metal entry doors
are located in this connector. There is a large rear addition on the east side where a drive up
window is located. (Photo 3)

24. Site of former 133 Marcoux Drive (formerly 133 Main Street), c. 1850. Demolished.*
The original structure was a 3 x 2 bay rectangular block structure that was updated c. 1900 and
underwent partial renovations in 2002. It a 1 ¥-story, cross-gable roofed Greek Revival house
that is clad in wood clapboards and sits on a brick foundation. The house has wide paneled
corner boards and there is a large brick corbelled chimney on the gable peak. A hipped roof
porch extends across the front (west) facade with a low pediment, filled with faceted wood
blocks, over the entrance. There is a bay window with ashlar-faced concrete block foundation on
the south facade. A new gable roof was built above the bay however, the south facade was left
open to the weather. The house has 2/2 wood sash windows in the bay and 6/6 windows in the
original block. The structure is severely deteriorated. By 2011 it had been demolished. (Photo 4)
*The building that used to stand here was #24 in the 1975 nomination, and that number is
retained here for consistency. This vacant lot, however, is not counted as a contributing or non-
contributing resource in this update.

24a. Site of former Barn/Apartment, c. 1870. Demolished.*

This was a 1 %2-story gable roof barn covered with wood shingles that had been converted to a
housing unit with an entrance on the south facade. By 2011 this building had been demolished.
*The building that used to stand here was #24a in the 1975 nomination, and that number is
retained here for consistency. This vacant lot, however, is not counted as a contributing or non-
contributing resource in this update.
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25. Windsor Diner, 135 Main Street, 1958. Contributing.

This is diner #835 made by the Worcester Diner Company of Worcester, Massachusetts. It was
the last diner manufactured by this company and was moved to Windsor in 1958. It is a one-
story, metal covered gable roof structure with an exterior siding of stainless steel in brushed steel
and red painted panels. The fenestration is large fixed plate glass windows set in the metal siding
that spans three sides of the diner. It has a diamond stamped fascia with a cornice for a band of
neon lights. On the front facade (west) is a protruding vestibule entranceway in the same style as
the main block with full-length, aluminum and glass doors on the north and south sides of the
enclosure. The diner is set upon a tall cinderblock foundation that puts the diner at street level. A
new wood deck has been built on the south side. (Photo 260)

26. Site of former 137 Marcoux Drive (formerly 137 Main Street), c. 1900. Demolished.*
This was a late Queen Anne/Shingle Style house, 2 stories sitting on a brick foundation. The
main block of the building had a jerkinhead gable roof on a north-south axis with a gable roof ell
extending from the rear (east) facade. The main block was 4 x 2 bays with a flat roof porch
extending over the south bays. The porch roof was supported by square posts on a solid knee-
wall and is covered with wood shingles. On the second story was a balcony with a hipped roof
located over the front entrance. The balcony roof was supported by false square columns on a
solid knee-wall that flared out and was covered with irregular wood shingles. The house was
fenestrated with 12/1 double-hung wood sash windows and was sided with pressboard
clapboards. There was a one-story, flat roof addition that extended from the rear facade of the ell.
The structure was severely deteriorated, and by 2011 it had been demolished. (Photo 5)

*The building that used to stand here was #26 in the 1975 nomination, and that number is
retained here for consistency. This vacant lot, however, is not counted as a contributing or non-
contributing resource in this update.

27. Site of former 139 Etta Frasier Drive (formerly 139 Main Street), c. 1870. Demolished.*
This was a large rambling Queen Anne style house with many additions to the rear (east) that
more than doubled the length of the original house. The original block was a 2 Y2-story, gable
roof rectangular block with gable-end entrance under a hipped porch roof extending across the
front (west) facade. The front block was covered with imitation brick asbestos siding and the
windows were 1/1 double hung wood sash windows. There was a 2-story bay window on the
south facade that had 2/2 wood sash windows. Extending from the rear (east) of the main block
was a long 1 Y2-story gable roof addition with a gable roof wall dormer projecting from the last %
of the addition. There were multiple shed roofed, fenestrated, enclosed porches along the south
facade of the addition. The vacant building was demolished in 2014 due to serious disrepair.
(Photos 6 & 25)

*The building that used to stand here was #27 in the 1975 nomination, and that number is
retained here for consistency. This vacant lot, however, is not counted as a contributing or non-
contributing resource in this update.
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28. 145 Etta Frasier Drive (formerly 145 Main Street), c. 1890. Contributing.

This is a large, 2 ¥2-story, late Queen Anne style house with architectural details from the
Shingle style and Colonial Revival style. The house sits on a brick foundation and the main
block is rectangular with a steep pitched gable roof. There is a cross gable dormer in the front
(west) facade. The house is clad in clapboards on the first and second floors with decorative
shingles in the gable peaks and plain corner boards. The shingle butts are dogtooth, staggered
and used in non-linear forms to accent the Palladian window in the dormer peak. The roof has
wide overhanging eaves with dentil molding as cornice decoration throughout the building.
There are cornice returns at the gable ends. The house is 3 x 2 bays on the first floor and 5 x 2
bays on the second floor. The main entrance is the middle bay on the eaves side with large scenic
windows with large fixed diamond shaped glass panels at the top of each window. There is a
porch that covers the three bays and is covered by a low-hipped porch roof supported by plain
square posts. A low gable peak is located in the center of the porch roof. The porch does not
have a rail or balusters and has lattice skirt. On the second floor of the front facade there is a
three-sided oriel window in the center bay. On the third floor, in the dormer peak, is a small
Palladian window with a small false balcony built on the roof of the oriel window. There is a
three-sided bay window at the east bay of the north facade. It is topped with a false balcony like
that on the front fagade in the dormer with shingles covering the area above the windows. The
majority of the windows are double hung sash with the bottom sash a single plain pane and the
upper sash has many diamond panes. An addition was added to the rear of the house to provide
kitchen and bathroom space. It is supported by steel posts. There are two brick chimneys at the
roof peak. (Photo 25)

28a. Barn, c. 1890. Contributing.

Behind the house, to the east, is a small 1 ¥%-story, gable-roofed barn with gable end entrance. It
is sided in wood clapboard with paneled and fenestrated wood doors on the first level of the front
(west) elevation. The steeply pitched roof is covered with a metal. At the gable peak is a 2/2
window and a hay door is placed between the window and the front doors. There are other
windows on the first floor of the barn. (No photo)

29. Former Windsor Fire Station/Windsor Municipal Building, 147 Main Street, 1929.
Contributing.
This is a 2-story, 5 x 2 bay, large rectangular brick faced structure with a flat roof. The structure
has below-ground building space that follows the drop-off of the slope to the east. The building
was originally built to house the firehouse for the Town of Windsor and was built in the
Georgian Revival style with Art Deco influence of the bold red and white juxtaposition of brick
and light grey granite features. There are five elliptically-arched bays spanning the front facade
with exaggerated keystone and impost blocks in the archway giving an arcade appearance. Four
of the bays are used openings for the fire trucks with overhead doors. The fifth bay, to the north,
is the main entrance to the building through an aluminum and glass wall insert. The large
overhead type garage doors are made of 5 rows of 6 individual panels with the bottom two rows
of solid wood and the top three rows of fixed panes of clear glass. At the top of the doors are
large elliptical fixed panels of wood. At the corners of the building are large granite quoins. On
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the second floor the triple windows are topped with large splayed lintels. The second floor
windows are 6/6 double hung sash windows with narrower 4/4 sash windows on either side. The
roof is flat and is surrounded by a parapet that is stepped on the front facade. The building was
vacated by the town in 2003 when they renovated the former high school building on Union
Street for municipal offices and constructed a new fire station there. (Photo 29)

30. 149 Main Street, c. 1800. Contributing.

This is a small, 1 Y2-story, 5 x 2 bay, vernacular, Federal style Cape Cod house with an asphalt
shingle gable roof and eaves center entrance that sits on a brick foundation. There are two
interior brick chimneys. A small gable porch hood covers the main entrance. The house is
covered with clapboards and has 6/6 wood sash windows. The front door is flanked by full-
length sidelights. The house sits slightly below street level. Between this house and that to the
south, is a concrete staircase that leads down to an entrance to a small shed roof addition that is a
sub-level apartment. (Photo 29)

31. 151 Main Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

A very simple, 2 %2-story, gable roofed, vernacular Federal style, 5 x 2 bay house with eaves
center entrance. The windows are 2/2 double hung sashes. On the north facade are still 6/6
double hung wood sash windows. The house is sided with very narrow wood clapboards. There
are two interior end brick chimneys. Between this house and that to the north, is a concrete
staircase that leads down to an entrance to a small flat roof addition that serves as a sub-level
apartment. (Photo 29)

32. 153 Main Street, c. 1820. Contributing.

This is a 2 ¥%-story, 5 x 2 bay, vernacular Federal style, gable roof house with an eaves front
entrance that is covered by a shed roof porch supported by turned posts with decorative
scrollwork brackets at the top of the posts. The door is a modern replacement that is slightly off-
center suggesting that the original doorway was wider — perhaps with sidelights. The porch rail is
modern wood slat lattice with capped rail. There is a center chimney and two small gable roof
dormers projecting from the front roof slope. A one-story gable roof ell extends from the rear
facade that is covered with metal roof material. The house is fenestrated with 2/2 double hung
wood sash windows. (Photos 7, 8 & 29)

33. Rueben Dean House, 161 Main St., c. 1770/1899. Contributing.

This house was originally 1 ¥-stories with a center chimneystack. The house was partially
destroyed by fire in 1879 and in 1899 was rebuilt as a 2 Y2-story structure. The 4 x 2 bay gable
roofed house sits slightly below street level and is covered with unpainted narrow wood
clapboards except for the gable on the north facade where the siding has been removed. A 2-
story, 3 x 2 bay ell extends from the rear (east) facade. A simple shed roof porch extends across
the front facade and is supported by turned posts. On the first level of the south facade, there are
two bay windows that have rounded dentil style molding on the fascia board under the flat roofs
with scroll-sawn brackets at the corners. The house is fenestrated with 1/1 wood sash windows.
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In the gable peak of the south facade, the horizontal siding has been replaced with vertical flat
siding and large fixed glass windows.

Reuben Dean, a silversmith and goldsmith, who in 1778 executed Ira Allen’s design for the first
Great Seal of the Republic of Vermont, occupied the house in the 1770s and 1780s. (Photos 7 &
29)

33a. Livery Barn/Appliance Storage c. 1880/1920. Contributing.

Located to the southeast of the house is a 1 %-story gable roof barn with gable and entrance and
fenestrated cupola with a four-sided canopy roof. The barn has a slate roof and is clad with wood
clapboards. The barn is in extremely poor condition and has suffered some structural damage
particularly to the north facade. There is a 2-story structure attached to the rear of the barn that
served as a storage site for appliances. It also has suffered extensive deterioration and the east
end of the hexagon asphalt shingled roof has collapsed. (No photo)

34. Methodist Church Parsonage, 165 Main Street, c. 1895. Contributing.

This is a 2 ¥%-story, late Queen Anne style house that serves as the residence for the pastor of the
Rachel Harlow Methodist Church (35) located just to the south on Main Street. The steeply
pitched gable roof is shingled with slate and there is a brick chimney at the rear of the peak. The
front (west) elevation has two bays on each floor with a small window in the gable peak. There is
a two-story, three-sided bay window on the southern bay. The bay window is topped by a flat
roof with short sloping sides. The house and roof of the bay have been covered in vinyl siding.
The main entrance is covered by a flat roofed rectangular roof supported by late 20th century
metal trellis supports. On the south facade is a gable roof ell. Between the ell and the main block
of the house is a narrow shed roof porch running along the south fagade providing shelter for an
ancillary entrance to the house. The porch roof is supported by turned posts. Another porch is
attached to the rear (southeast) corner of the house. The house is fenestrated with modern 6/6
double hung sash with some 2/2 wood sash on the rear facades. (Photos 7 & 29)

34a. Barnc. 1895. Contributing.

This is a small, 1 Y2-story gable roof carriage barn that has been converted to use as a garage. On
the front (south) facade there are two bays with the west being the original hinged doors and the
east a overhead garage door with glass panels. Above the garage door is a small gable dormer
with a small door for the hayloft. The roof is covered with metal and the walls are narrow wood
clapboards. (No photo)

35. Rachel Harlow Methodist Church, 167 Main Street, 1895. Contributing.

The church was built in the Gothic Revival Style in memory of Rachel Harlow as the result of a
bequest in her will. The church is a large rectangular structure of brick, with load bearing
construction dominated by an expansive gable roof with a corbelled cornice. The front gable
elevation is punctuated by a large, round-arched, stained glass window containing a “rose
window” tracery and is flanked on the south by a bell tower with a steep, slate-covered pyramid
roof and an open bell chamber of round arches and on the north by a similar tower of smaller
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scale. A gable-roofed porch with ornamental trusses and a round, gable arch supported by groups
of three slender columns frames the entrance on the south bell tower. A similar porch of smaller
scale frames the entrance on the smaller north tower. The wall surfaces of the church and the
towers are articulated by recessed rectangular panels framing gothic —arched stained glass
windows; and the roofs of the porches and the towers are decoratively banded by colored,
imbricated slates. (Photos 29 & 31)

36. Clement Pettes House/B.P.O.E., 156 Main Street, ¢.1825/1950. Contributing.

This is a large, 2-story Federal style building with a gable roof. It is 4 x 6 bay with a pediment in
the front (east) gable end with a wood fanlight. The house was converted to use by the local Elks
Club and had substantial changes made to accommaodate the club’s use. The first floor was
extended beyond the original structure walls to form a one-story permanent enclosed porch that
extends across the front fagade continuing around the full south facade. The addition’s walls are
brick fagcade with large fixed windows that have one large pane and two smaller panes, one on
top of each other, to the side of the large pane. The original entrance to the house was gable-end
and has now been moved to the south facade as part of the addition. A two-story, wood
clapboard addition was added to the rear of the structure and this has a one-story shed roof
addition extending from it. A large shed roof porch has been built extending from the south
facade and covers accessibility ramps and a small staircase to the main entrance. The fenestration
of the second story windows in the original building are modern 1/1. (Photos 9 & 29)

37. Shubael Wardner House, 150 Main Street, c. 1825/1850. Contributing.

This is a large 2-story, 3 x 7 bay, brick Federal style house with a gable roof. The front (east)
facade has a pedimented front gable entrance with side hall entrance and a fanlight in the gable
peak. The main entrance is covered by a pedimented gable roof porch supported by tapered
square columns. On the front fagade the bays are recessed in the brickwork to give the
impression of the pediment supported by four engaged brick columns. All the window
fenestration has been updated to 1/1 double hung sash windows. Above the windows are granite
splayed lintels and sills. There are three tall brick chimneys on the south roof plane. Extending
from the rear fagade is a 2 x 6 bay, 1 ¥-story, Gothic Revival addition that provides four
additional living units. The addition is sided with vinyl siding and the roof is metal. The addition
has a gable roof with steep pitched wall dormers set over the second and sixth bay. There are
gable door hoods above the entrances. Wright Court runs to the south and behind the house
where three houses have been built. (Photo 28)

38. Old South Congregational Church, 146 Main Street, 1798/1844/1879/1922.
Contributing.

Designed by Asher Benjamin in 1798, the portico was added to the church in 1879, and the
interior, which had been remodeled in 1844 and again in 1879, was restored in 1922 to its
supposed 1798 condition. A large, clapboard, 2 ¥2-story, gable-roofed, rectangular structure of
post and beam construction set on a rubblestone foundation, the church’s front gable elevation is
broken by a projecting entrance pavilion with a monumentally scaled, pedimented entrance
portico supported by four fluted lonic columns. The portico’s modillion entablature returns to
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fluted lonic pilasters on the pavilion and continues around the perimeter of the church supported
at the corners by staggered quoins. The front elevation is crowned by a tiered bell tower which
steps over the front gable to sit partially on the gable roof of the pavilion. The interior of the
church is illuminated on the first story by 20/20 windows and on the second story by elongated
25/25 windows with individual entablatures. Besides the monumental entrance portico, the bell
tower is the church’s most distinguishing architectural feature. The tower is divided into four
distinct sections: (1) a square, clapboarded, bottom tier with a modillion cornice; (2) a square,
arcaded, second tier with Doric pilasters between the arches supporting an entablature and
finialed balustrade, and with garland-draped urns in the blind corner arches; (3) an octagonal,
open bell chamber of octagonal columns supporting a Doric entablature and a paneled
balustrade; and (4) a ship-lapped, octagonal cupola with lonic pilasters supporting a modillion
entablature capped with an inflected octagonal dome and weather vane. (No photo)

39. Old Apothecary Shop/Old Bank Building, 108 Main Street, 1804. Contributing.

This is a 2 Y2-story, brick, vernacular Federal style, gabled roofed building with front gable
center entrance. The walls of the structure are brick and the gable ends are wood clapboards.
There is a tall brick chimney protruding from the southeast corner of the roof slope. The main
entrance is located in the center of the front (east) elevation with a one-bay gable roof porch
supported by cutout posts with scroll brackets at the top. The fenestration is primarily 6/6 double
hung sash with some 12/12 on the rear facade. Granite blocks with tool marks are used as a
watercourse on the foundation. The building was erected in 1804 by Dr. Isaac Green, a physician
who settled in Windsor in 1788, for use as an apothecary shop. From 1848 to 1881 the building
was the Ascutney-Windsor Bank. (No photo)

40. Isaac Green House/The Inn at Windsor, 106 Apothecary Lane (formerly 106 Main
Street), c. 1792/1805. Contributing.

The main block of the building is a rectangular, 5 x 2 bay, 2 ¥2-story, Federal style house with
gable roof and eaves center entrance. The main block is clapboard sided except for the north
facade (which is brick with a parapet) and the windows are 6/6 double hung sash. There is an
Italianate style, flat roof porch with eaves brackets covering the front entrance. To the north of
the main block is a one-story brick gable roof structure with a large chimneystack that served as
Dr. Green’s apothecary shop before he built the shop at 108 Main Street. Extending from the rear
(west) facade of the main block is a one-story, gable roof, brick ell with extensive fenestration.
This was area where George B. Green produced his “Oxygenated Bitters”. (No photo)

41. Nathaniel Leonard House/Masonic Lodge, 4 Dunham Avenue (formerly 100 Main
Street), c. 1785/1881. Contributing.
This is a 2 ¥.-story, Georgian style house with gable roof and eaves front entrance covered by a
pedimented gable roof porch supported by fluted columns. The formal front entrance has an
ornate pediment with dentil molding and fixed fanlight supported by pilasters. There is a
Palladian window in the center bay above the front entrance. The fenestration is 2/2 double hung
sash windows and there are symmetrically paired interior chimneystacks. The main block has a
small, 2-story gable roof wings on either side. There is a 1 ¥2-story, gable roof ell extending from
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the rear (west) facade with a shed roof porch extending across its rear facade. A small flat roof
porch is built in the area between the wing and main block on the southwest fagade, and it
supported by posts with highly decorative capitals. The house was erected c. 1785 by Nathaniel
Leonard and partially destroyed by fire in 1881. It was rebuilt and restored in 1919 by George
Gridley. (No photo)

41a. Barn. c. 1850. Contributing.
This is a small, gable roof barn with hinged doors on the gable end. It is covered in narrow
clapboards. (No photo)

42. Bianchi Block, 94 Main Street, 1915. Contributing.

This is a 2-story commercial building with a flat roof encircled by a parapet with corbelled
cornice. The building is of brick construction with buff terra-cotta bricks used on the front
facade. The building is divided into three separate sections each with recessed entrances between
large plate glass storefront window set in metal frames with leaded glass panels at the top. On the
upper level the windows are 6/1 double hung wood sash. The main block of the building has two
ells extending from its rear (west) facade. (Photo 10)

43. Merrifield Block, 86 Main Street, 1849. Contributing.

This is a 2 ¥.-story, gable roof, Federal style building with gable end entrance and a stepped
parapet on the front (east) facade. The first level of the front facade has 3 bays with a recessed
side hall entranceway and two large single plate glass windows. Above the bays is a wide
entablature with cornice supported at each end by large engaged square fluted columns. The
fenestration on the upper level is 2/2 double hung sash with a 6/6 window in the gable peak.
There are paired internal chimneys on the rear facade. A shed roof addition extends from the rear
facade and there is a balcony built out of the second level of the south facade over the alleyway.
(Photo 10)

44, Site of former Stiles-Billings Block. Destroyed by fire.*

(Photo 10)

*The building that used to stand here was #44 in the 1975 nomination, and that number is
retained here for consistency. This vacant lot, however, is not counted as a contributing or non-
contributing resource in this update.

45. Miller-Stuart Block, 9 State Street, c. 1830. Contributing.

Now known as the Enright Block, this is a large, 3-story brick Federal style building that is 5
bays across the front (north) facade. The upper two stories are identical with a mixture of 2/2 and
2/1 double hung wood sash windows with splayed lintels. On the first level all the openings have
splayed lintels and in the two east bays the windows are large single pane fixed windows. The
third bay is an entranceway with divided fixed transom window. The fourth bay from the east is
a paired gothic window, the fifth bay is a single pane fixed window and the last bay is a doorway
once covered by a gable roof porch. There are brick walls leading to the main entrance from the
street. There are two sub-level bays on the front facade at the east end. The firewall of the T.S.
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Fullerton building (1853 Hosea Dalton Map) is evident on the east facade where three bricked in
windows are now visible. The building underwent rehabilitation in the last decade. The large
windows were removed on the east bay and one large storefront was installed. The brick was
repainted with a red limewash. New stairs were added and windows were either repaired or
replaced. The building is in excellent condition. (Photos 10 & 287)

46. Old Windsor Savings Bank Block - Annex, 13 State Street, c. 1870. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, rectangular block, Italianate style commercial brick building with a flat roof
and 5 bays across the front (north) facade. The bays are recessed in shallow arcades with a center
arcade of one bay width and the other arcades of two bays. The windows are 2/2 double hung
wood sash with segmental brickwork hood moldings above and sill drip molding and shallow
brackets below. The cornice at the top of the building is an excellent example of brickwork using
negative space and different positioning of the bricks. The structure sits on a granite foundation
sill. (Photo 261)

47. Old Windsor Savings Bank Building, 17 State Street, ¢. 1820/1870. Contributing.

This is a 3 x 5 bay, rectangular brick Italianate style commercial building with a flat roof. On the
front (north) facade, each bay is enclosed in a shallow recessed arcade with the upper level
windows having brick segmental hood molding over the 2/2 double hung wood sash windows,
and the lower levels having metal hood molding over the windows. The arches over the lower
level bays have keystones. On the east fagcade each bay of both floors are in a single recessed
shallow arcade and the window surrounds are the same as those on the front facade. The cornice
is similar to that of the Annex with an elaborate brickwork using the bricks in different positions
and using negative space. The building sits on a large stone foundation. The building was erected
in 1820 as a one-story structure and the second floor was added c. 1870 at the same time the
Annex was built. (Photo 10)

48. St. Paul’s Episcopal Church, 27 State Street, 1822. Contributing.

Designed by Alexander Parris of Boston, St. Paul’s is an early Greek Revival style,
monumentally scaled, gable-roofed, rectangular-shaped structure of brick, load bearing
construction set on a rubblestone foundation. Measuring three bays across the front and five bays
across the side elevations, a one-bay entrance portico with two stuccoed lonic columns in antis is
recessed into the pedimented front gable elevation. A brick entablature with wood cornice
returns extends around the perimeter of the church and is supported at the corners, including the
corners of the recessed portico, by brick pilasters. The front elevation is crowned by a dome-
capped, tiered bell tower with a ship-lapped bottom tier and a louvered octagonal bell chamber.
Monumentally scaled, round-arched windows with mullioned sash on the exterior and stained
glass sash on the interior conceal the church’s actual two-story, interior height.

Secondary entrances with recessed, round stuccoed panels above are located in the end bays of
the side elevations. Alexander Parris was an associate of the Boston architects Charles Bullfinch
and Richard Upjohn. (No photo)
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49. Site of former Episcopal Parsonage, 37 State Street. Demolished.*

(No photo)

*The building that used to stand here was #49 in the 1975 nomination, and that number is
retained here for consistency. This vacant lot, however, is not counted as a contributing or non-
contributing resource in this update.

50. 39 State Street, c. 1840/1870. Contributing.

This is a 2 Y2-story, gable roof, 3 x 2 bay vernacular Federal Style house with clapboard siding
and two interior chimneys. The house was updated c. 1870 with Queen Anne style details of a
front porch that extends across the front (north) fagade that is supported by chamfered posts with
delicate brackets supporting the fascia and a lattice porch skirt; a one-story bay window
extending from the west facade and 2/2 double hung wood sash windows. A 1 %2-story ell
extends from the rear fagade. (Photo 262)

50a. Garage, c. 1920. Contributing.
This is a one-story, hipped roof, clapboard sided, two-bay garage with brick chimney and 6/1
wood sash windows. (Photo 262)

51. Windsor Library, 43 State Street, ¢.1905. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥-story brick building with a gable roof in Georgian Revival style with entablatured
and pedimented granite entrance portico supported by large Doric columns. The slate shingled
roof has a granite raking cornice with dentil molding and granite is used as quoins on the
building corners. The windows have exaggerated cut granite sills and lintels and at the gable
ends are corniced parapets with interior chimneystacks. The building was designed by Henry
Bacon, a well-known architect who designed the Lincoln Memorial in Washington, DC. (No
photo)

52. Emerson-Davis House/Davis Home, 45 State Street, c. 1805. Contributing.

A 1 Y-story, gable roof, Greek Revival style house that is now used as senior housing. The main
block is brick with gable end entrance and the gable end is wood faced. A 2-story ell extends
across the rear (south) fagade to the west. A bay window was added to the east fagade. (No
photo)

53. 46 Village Green (formerly 46 Court Square), Main House, c. 1820. Contributing.

The main block is a 2 ¥2-story, gable roof, eaves front, Federal style building that has had several
changes. The first level of the front (east) facade has lost all the original details and now has a
center entrance flanked by two large single pane fixed picture windows. The upper level still
retains the 5 bay format with 2/2 double hung wood sash windows. There is a two-story, gable
roof ell extending from the rear (northwest) facade that has a two-story gable roof ell extending
from its north eaves facade. A two-story balcony, that also covers an external staircase, is built
across the north fagade of the second ell. The first floor of the second ell is fenestrated with 6/6
wood sash windows. (Photo 263)

Section 7 page 24



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Windsor Village Historic District (Additional Windsor, Vermont
Documentation and Boundary Increase, 2014)

Name of Property County and State

53a. Secondary House, c. 1930. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥%-story, low-pitched gable roof house with intersecting low-pitched gable ell. The
primary block has a gable end entrance facing east and 3 bays. The south bay is an overhead
garage door, the middle bay is a large picture window and the north bay is an entrance covered
by a gable door hood. The intersecting gable has a picture window and glass block on its east
facade. (Photo 263)

54. Davis/Ely House, 44 Village Green (formerly 44 Court Square), c. 1805/1860.
Contributing.
This is a 2 ¥%-story, Federal style house with slate gable roof that was updated with Italianate
style details. The main block is 3 x 4 bay, brick structure with gable front side hall entrance. The
front gable is a wood faced pediment with raking cornice and fanlight. There is a two-story flat-
roofed addition on the rear of the house and a one-story, multi-bay, gable roof barn attached to
the rear of the addition. The two-story addition was part of the Italianate changes made to the
building c. 1860. They included a one-story, flat roof porch that extends across the front fagcade
supported by turned porch posts. The porch roof has wide overhanging eaves and many small
brackets under the eaves on an arched valence between the porch posts. A low ornate porch rail
with drop molding runs between the posts. The addition is slightly larger than the main block and
extends beyond the brick fagade on the east side of the house. The entrance to the addition has an
extremely ornate door hood with swags, spandrels and elaborately carved brackets. On the east
side of the main block a two-story bay window was installed. The fenestration was also changed
at this time to 2/2 double hung wood sash windows. On the front porch the fenestration are two
full length French doors. (No photo)

55. 40 Village Green (formerly 40 Court Square), c. 1840/1860. Contributing.

This is a two-story, gable roof house that was updated ¢.1860 with Italianate details. The roof
was changed on the front (south) elevation to give it a low hipped roof appearance. The eaves
were extended and paired brackets added under the eaves. Two bay windows were installed on
the west facade and one on the east fagade. The fenestration is 2/2 wood sash windows. Three
corbelled chimneystacks protrude from the roof. There is a one-story gable roof ell (c. 1980)
extending from the rear fagade. The main block is sided with pressed wood shingles. (No photo)

55a. Garage, c. 1980. Non-contributing due to age.
This is a gable-roofed, two-bay garage. (No photo)

56. MclIndoe House, 5 Court Street, c. 1849. Contributing.

This Gothic Revival, 1 ¥2-story, 3x3-bay east facing block has a 1-story, 1 x 2-bay ell extending
from its north side, right bay. The main block has a steeply pitched, slate covered, cross-gable
roof, clapboard siding, and stone foundation. There is a profusion of decorative detail
throughout. Gable peaks are covered with variously patterned imbricated shingles. The
projecting roof eaves are trimmed with bargeboard, including scroll-sawn cut-outs and pendants.
The gable wall of the east-facing front facade has a small, slender Gothic arched window in the
peak, and two taller, 2/2 sash flanking a second, larger, Gothic arched window with diamond
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patterned panes and drip hood molding in the upper story. A balcony with wood balustrade
pierced by scroll-sawn, cusped arch cut-outs sits on a boxed rise set into a small shed roof which
covers the first story front entry porch. The porch has a multi-paned enclosure, spindle posts,
cusped arch cut-outs in the balustrade, and wood lattice skirt. Inside is the half-glazed, half-
paneled front door, surmounted by a label molding. The south side elevation, facing a large,
fenced yard, is the building’s most copiously ornamented facade. A trefoil window is set in the
gable peak. Beneath is a pair of lancet casement windows with quarrel patterned panes,
surmounted by a drip hood molding, divided by a stylized mullion, and giving onto a balcony
with wood balustrade pierced by scroll-sawn, cups arched cut-outs. The balcony is set into a
flared roof slope that covers the center bay of a full-width, first story porch featuring spindle
posts, cusped arch balustrade, and lattice skirt. First story fenestration includes two sets of paired
Gothic arches with geometric tracery and label molding. Two sets of paired brick chimneys are
located on the east-west roof ridge of the main block. The ell on the north side of the main block
has a slate-covered gable roof and clapboard siding. Imbricated shingles decorate the gable.
Windows in the ell have 6/6 sash. The gable side entry to the ell is through a double-leaf door
with raised panels. There is one interior brick chimney on the ell’s west roof slope. (No photo)

56a. Garage, ¢.1920. Contributing.
There is a single story garage with two bays across the gable front with asphalt shingle roofing
and wood siding. Two overhead sliding doors are lighted and paneled. (No photo)

57. 10 Court Street, c. 1900. Contributing.

This Colonial Revival, 2 ¥2-story, L-shaped building has front facades of both parts of the “L”
facing west, toward the street. The principal massing of the L is on the left. It is 3 bays wide and
2 bays deep. The secondary massing, on the right, is 2 bays wide and 2 bays deep. The unusual
irregular roof line consists of several intersecting gable peaks. Two gables dominate the left, or
primary, massing. One gable is lower than the other and caps the left and center bays of the
primary massing. The right bay is capped by the higher gable peak which interrupts the slope of
a lower, hipped roof. In addition, the bay that is part of the primary massing that is closest to the
street (i.e. westernmost) projects forward from the main wall. The house has slate-covered gable
roofs, clapboard siding, a molded wooden cornice, and a brick foundation. The gable peaks are
decorated with wood shingles and a wood belt course distinguishes the upper and lower stories.
The left massing has small, off-center, paired windows in the higher gable peak. On the second
story, there is one 1/1 wood sash in each of three bays. The first story has one of the same sash in
each of the left and center bays. There is a Colonial Revival porch in the right bay. The north
elevation has a projecting, three-sided, 2-story bay with pedimented gable roof. There is a brick
ridge chimney. The right bay of the secondary massing is capped by a gable peak. The second
story has a wide, 1/1 sash in each of the two bays. The first story has a Palladian-inspired
window in the left bay and an entry door in the right bay, recessed behind the main wall. (Photo
264)
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58. 8 Court Street, c. 1900. Contributing.

A Colonial Revival, this 2-story house has slate covered gable roofs, clapboard siding, and a
stone foundation. There are projecting molded cornices, frieze boards, and corner boards, and the
fenestration is symmetrical. All windows have a Queen Anne upper sash and single light in the
lower sash, complete with a simple molded wood surround; they are sometime paired as well.
For the 3x2-bay, the eaves front the main block and has a centered, 2-story, 1-bay wide, steeply-
pitched gable roofed projection on its west facing front facade. Its cornice is decorated with a
raised geometric motif and a wide frieze band beneath. The projecting bay features a six-paneled
front door surrounded by a multi-paned transom and % sidelights, and covered by a pedimented
porch roof with molded cornice and frieze supported by attenuated Tuscan style columns. Steps
and a railing lead from the sidewalk to the porch. Each of the projection’s north and south side is
lighted by one window. A full width front porch that is across the main block eaves front has a
hipped roof, spindle balustrade, and a lattice skirt. Also on the eaves front main wall, (left and
right bays) are paired windows. The north facade has one window in the gable, two windows on
the second story, and paired windows in each of the first story’s two bays. The south facade
repeats this fenestration except for a three sided Queen Anne bay window, with projecting
molded and bracketed cornice and paneled base, in the right bay of the first story. There is a
single story rear porch, two bays wide, that is enclosed with arched, multi-paned windows and
covered with a flat roof. There are two brick chimney located on the west slope of the main roof.
(Photo 265)

59. 6 Court Street, c. 1826. Contributing.

Constructed in the Greek Revival style, this is a 1 ¥-story, 3x3-bay, west facing, gable front
main block with a c. 1920. 1-story, 1x1-bay eaves front, with a south facing wing that extending
from the main block’s rear, east facing wall, and a c. 1920, 2-story, 3x1-bay ell located at the
wing’s southeast corner. The main block has a broadly pitched asphalt shingled roof, clapboard
siding, and a stone foundation. There are cornice returns, and corner pilasters. The front facade
windows are 6/6 sash. There are two upper story windows, and paired windows in the left bay,
on sash in the right bay on the first story. The entry in the middle bay has an unpainted paneled
wood door behind and exterior aluminum storm door. These are slightly recessed behind the
main facade wall, and surrounded by % sidelights and a narrow, fluted, architrave trim with
corner blocks. Flush with the main facade wall is a larger surround, also with fluted architrave
trim and corner blocks. On the main block’s south elevation, two single-story, three sided bay
windows with denticulated cornice, paneled base, are paired with 2/2 sash in the center and,
more slender, 1/1 sash on the sides. A door situated in the middle bay serves to access this side
of the main block. One gable roofed dormer with a paired sash is on this roof slope. There is a
brick chimney on the south and north slopes of the main block. The wing’s south wall is recessed
behind the south wall of the block. The wing has an asphalt shingled gabled roof and clapboard
siding. This win’s south roof slope has a gable dormer that is located above the side entrance,
complete with a gable roof hood. The ell has an asphalt shingled gable roof and clapboard siding.
The first story contains a garage with glazed and paneled overhead sliding doors across the two
right bays. In the left bay there is enter to a second story apartment, the latter which contains a
modern three-sided window. (Photo 266)
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60. Windsor Town Hall/American Legion Hall, 4 Court Street, 1888. Contributing.

This is a Romanesque style building, designed by Hira Beckwith who was with the firm of
Appleton and Stephenson. The building’s massive block-like form, its brick walls pierced by
narrow pairs of round-arched windows along the side (north and south) elevations, is dominated
by an expansive, slate-covered hip roof supported by a corbelled cornice eleven brick courses
high. The eaves line of the hip roof is broken on the front elevation by a projecting, pedimented
gable above a symmetrical grouping of three, round-arched windows on the second story and a
round-arched entrance portal on the first. The narrow, round-arched windows of the side
elevations are repeated on either side of the entrance portal and on the end bays of the side
elevations in the form of recessed panels framing a window, decorative, terra cotta tile and bull’s
eye window. A round terra cotta tile bearing a shield and the date 1888 is located in the
pediment. A long rectangular terra cotta plaque bearing “Town Hall” is located above the
entrance portal. (No photo)

61. Old Windsor County Courthouse, 24 State Street, c. 1784/1888. Contributing.

Erected for use as the Windsor County Courthouse, this large clapboarded, 2 Y%-story, gable-
roofed, frame building was originally located on the Court Square Common. It now sits on the
edge of the slope from State Street with its bottom level accessible from the parking lot behind
Windsor House. The gable roof has cornice returns and 2/2 double hung wood sash windows in
pairs on the front (north) facade and in single windows in six bays on the side facades. There is a
flat roof porch with solid balcony railing covering the entrances on the front fagade. A tall
chimneystack projects from the east roof slope. The building was moved to its present location
on State Street in 1888 when the Windsor Town Hall was built and has undergone many uses.
(No photo)

62. 18-20 State Street, c. 1890. Contributing.

This is a 2 ¥.-story, slate gable roofed commercial building with eaves front entrances. There are
interior chimneys at each gable end. The street level front facade has three separate entrances but
the exterior has been altered with the eastern part of the facade enclosed in paneling. The second
level of the front facade is covered with a shed porch roof supported by turned posts and has a
railing of turned balusters and wood cap. (No photo)

63. 12 State Street, c. 1870. Contributing.

This is a tall, 2 ¥%-story, gable roof, commercial building with gable end entrance. The first level
has a single entrance recessed from large plate glass windows. The building is clad in narrow
clapboards. There are cornice returns at the eaves and the fenestration is 1/1 sash windows. The
windows on the east fagade have been boarded over. (No photo)

64. 10 State Street, c. 1880. Contributing.

Although unusual in appearance due to the very low pitched gable roof, photographs from 1900
show the building in this arrangement. The 2-story commercial building has a recessed entrance
on the first level of the front (north) facade and three windows on the second level. The front
facade is covered with vinyl siding. The west fagade is covered with narrow wood clapboards.
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Between this building and #12 to the west is a small two-story apartment unit that is located
down an alley between the buildings. The one-bay facade has a 2/2 window on the second level
and a multi-pane door on the first level that is recessed under the upper level. At the edge of the
upper level is a very small spool valence. It is repeated over the storefront entrance of #10. (No
photo)

65. Tontine Block (Windsor News Co.), 70 Main Street, c. 1825. Contributing.

This is a 2 Y2-story, brick, Federal style commercial building with raking parapet at the ends of a
gable roof. The eaves front entrance is recessed between storefront windows set in metal frames
and have wood paneled bases. On the second level are two 6/1 wood sash windows. This
building was the end section of a Tontine commercial block which ran north and abutted the
Pettes-Journal Block.

66. J.J. Newberry Co., 64 Main Street, 1929. Contributing.

This is a one-story, buff brick faced, commercial building with large plate glass windows set in
metal frames and recessed doorways. The long front fagade is divided into two units each with
their own doorway. The bottom panels of the windows are faced with dark green marble panels
and decorative cast metal ventilation grills set in the panels. There is a cast stone raking cornice
below the roof edge and at the north and south ends of the cornice are art deco panels. (No
photo)

67. Pettes Journal Block (Vermont National Bank), 60 Main Street, c. 1824. Contributing.
Erected by Frederick Pettes, this narrow Federal style brick building has 3 %2-stories and a gable
roof with a gable front entrance. The gable roof has raking parapets on the east and west facades
and is crowned at the ridge by symmetrically set interior chimneystacks. On the front (east) and
north side elevations, three and seven bays across, respectively, the second and third story
windows are set into recessed, rectangular wall panels one bay wide and two stories high. The
first story windows on the north side elevation are recessed within elliptically arched wall panels
as is the window in the front gable flanked on either side by quarter-round panels. The building
is fenestrated with 6/6 double hung wood sash windows. The Colonial Revival style storefront,
with fluted columns, was added in 1913. In 1829, Simeon Ide, editor of the Vermont Journal,
moved the newspaper from the Old Constitution House to the building.

68. Old NAMCO Armory, 56 G Company Road (formerly 56 Main Street), c. 1910.
Contributing.
This is a very large, 1 ¥2-story gable roof brick building that was built as an activity center for
workers at National Acme Co. (NAMCO). The rectangular massed building has a low-pitched
gable roof with pediment with an inset of three small 6/1 wood sash windows. The roof has wide
raking cornice. The main block of the building has a row of seven paired 6/1 sash windows high
up the east and west facade. Across the front (north) facade there are 6 pairs of 6/1 windows. On
the first level of the front facade is a fenestrated brick enclosed porch/vestibule that spans the
width of the building. The building sits on a high foundation with a concrete water table. The
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window sills and lintels are also formed concrete. A large brick chimney is at the roof ridge.
(Photo 267)

69. Windsor House, 54 Main Street, 1836. Contributing.
Individually listed in the National Register of Historic Places, December 29, 1971.

70. Emerson-Stoughton House (Old Windsor Hospital), 46 Main Street, c. 1835.
Contributing.
This building has been altered over the years by the addition of multiple ells; each attached to the
rear facade of the previous building thereby creating an exceptionally long building structure.
The original block of this building is a 3 x 4 bay, 2 ¥%-story, Federal style house with gable roof
and gable end side hall entrance. The main entrance is slightly recessed with fixed transom and
sidelights ornamented with metal tracery placed over the glass. The upper level has 2/2 wood
sash windows with stone lintels and sills. A tall chimney protrudes from the south roof slope and
the building sits on a high foundation faced with granite. There is a two-story, brick, gable roof
addition extending from the north end of the rear (west) fagade. Attached at the south corner of
this additions rear fagade is a two-story addition with arched window frames, flat roof and wood
clapboard siding. Extending from the rear of this addition is a two-story ell used for housing
patients or clients. There are three small, one-story additions attached along the north facade.
(Photo 268)

70a. Administration Building, c. 1830/c. 1910 (William Maxwell Evarts Law Office) 40
Maxwell Perkins Lane. Contributing.

This is a small, one-story, hipped roof, clapboard sided 3 x 2 bay cottage with 12/12 wood sash

windows and squat chimneystack. It is connected to the other outbuilding by a covered

breezeway. It is not shown in this location before the 1917 Sanborn map but could have been the

original law office re-located from elsewhere on the original Evarts estate. (Photo 268)

70b. Maintenance Building, c. 1850, 40 Maxwell Perkins Lane. Contributing.

This is a small, one-story, gable roof brick building with cornice returns and interior chimney at
the gable end. There is an eaves front entrance under a low shed roof. A one-story, clapboard,
gable roof addition has been added to the west facade. It is connected to the other outbuilding
(#70a) by a covered breezeway. (Photo 268)

71. Baptist Church/Trinity Free Evangelist Church, 44 Main Street, 1943/c.1980.
Contributing.
The original block of the building is a 1 ¥-story, corduroy brick faced, gable-roofed church with
Gothic styling. The stained glass windows on the north and south facades are in lancet-framed
windows. The front (east) fagade of the main block has a castellated bell tower. Attached to the
front facade of the original block is a 1 ¥2-story gable roof, 2-bay deep, brick faced entrance
vestibule with floor to ceiling windows on the front facade. At the rear of the main block, on the
north facade, is a 1 ¥2-story, gable roof addition that extends across the rear facade. (Photo 269)
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72. Abner Forbes House, 38 Maxwell Perkins Lane (formerly 38 Main Street), 1796.
Contributing.

Erected by Abner Forbes, this house was also owned by William Maxell Evarts and was one of
the three houses within the Evart’s residential compound. The others being the Zebina Curtis
House (73) and the John Skinner House (74). A clapboarded, 2 ¥2-story, frame I-house with an
expansive hip roof and one interior chimney on each end elevation. The house is elaborately
detailed with a roof entablature in the Greek Doric Order with garland draped entablatures above
the first floor windows and a garland draped entablature supported by paneled pilasters framing a
transom light and entrance. The ell of the house is of brick, load-bearing construction with the
first floor windows set in recessed panels. Hipped dormers protrude from the roof slopes of the
ell. The fenestration has been updated with modern windows. A small, one-story, gable roof
brick building, which may have been the main room for a green house is attached to the east
facade of the brick ell. (No photo)

73. Zebina Curtis - William Maxwell Evarts House, 34 Maxwell Perkins Lane (formerly 34
Main Street), 1796. Contributing.
The house is a square, clapboarded, 2 ¥2-story, frame structure with a truncated hip roof,
symmetrically paired interior chimneystacks, and a Georgian floor plan. A dentilated modillion
cornice supports the overhanging eaves of the roof. While the floor plan of the house is
essentially unaltered, the interior has been remodeled several times in a variety of “Victorian”
styles. The taut planes of the exterior wall surface have been interrupted on the first floor by the
addition of octagonal bay windows on the north, east, and south elevations. Nathan Coolidge
started building the house and it was completed by Zebina Curtis. It was purchased in 1851 by
William Maxwell Evarts for a summer residence. The formal front entrance is on the south
facade, facing away from Main Street. This was due to the fact that Everett Lane crossed Main
Street and continued to the west to run between 38 Main Street and this house. (No photo)

74. John Skinner House, 28 Main Street, c. 1820. Contributing.

The house is a gable-roofed, 2 Y2-story, brick structure with symmetrically paired, interior
chimneystacks and raking parapets on the gable end (north and south) elevations. The main
rectangular block is 5 x 4 bay with 6/6 wood sash windows with wide splayed keystone lintels
and sits on a stone foundation. The slate gable roof has three hipped dormers protruding from the
front roof slope. The main entrance may have been eaves center on the east facade for there is an
exceptionally detailed, clapboard sided enclosed porch on that facade in the center bay. The
fenestration on the east wall of the porch is a large fanlight with fixed panel windows below and
the glass is set in elaborate metal tracery. On the first level of the south facade a formal entrance
is covered by a flat porch roof supported by Tuscan columns. Attached on the west fagade is a
gable-roofed, 2 ¥2-story, brick ell. The house was one of the three owned by William Maxwell
Evarts and located within the Evart’s residential compound. (No photo)

75. Joseph Hatch (Edminster) House, 24 Main Street, c. 1825. Contributing.
This is a 3 x 4 bay, Federal style brick house with gable end side hall entrance and slatted
fanlight in the pedimented wood sided gable peak. There are two tall chimneystacks on the south
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slope of the slate roof. The front entrance is recessed within an arched opening with sidelights.
The fenestration is 6/6 wood sash windows. A smaller 2 %2-story ell extends from the rear facade
and extending from that is a 1 ¥2- story gable roof, timber-frame barn that has two open bays.
(No photo)

76. Simeon Ide House, 20 Main Street, c. 1819/1825. Contributing.

The Federal Style house is a 2 ¥2-story, brick structure with a large gable roof and a front gable
elevation. It is 5 x 5 bays with the entrance in the center of the front (east) fagade. The original
structure had a north-south ridge pole. When converted to its current Greek Revival form, the
roof line was repositioned to a north-south orientation. The gable peak of the front fagade has a
monumental balustraded balcony recessed into the pediment that is supported by four tall,
narrow Doric columns unequally spaced. A low-pitched, one-story, gable roof portico has been
added to the south, first floor facade. The windows are 6/6 wood sash with splayed lintels. A
smaller 2 ¥2-story gable roof ell extends from the rear facade. The ell is clad with narrow wood
clapboards and has 6/6 windows. Extending to the west from the ell is a 1 ¥2-story attached barn
with open bays and a cross gable barn at the end. (Photo 11)

77. Susan Bishop House, 18 Main Street, c. 1840/1860. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥.-story, 5 x 2 bay, brick, gable roof Gothic Revival house that has a large, steeply
pitched gable wall dormer in the center of the south facade. The large, square window in the
front gable is topped by a three-part decorative triangular fanlight in the gable peak. There is a
clapboard sided, one-story bay window on the south facade. A 2-story, clapboard sided ell
projects from the rear (west) facade. Attached to that is a smaller 2-story ell that has overhead
garage door openings on the south facade. (Photo 11)

78. Old Constitution House. 16 Main Street, c. 1775, Contributing.
Individually listed in the National Register of Historic Places on March 11, 1971.

79. Dr. Elisha Phelps House, 54 State Street, c. 1794. Contributing.

This is a c.1794, Georgian style, two and a half story, gable roof, wood frame, five by two bay
house, parallel to and facing the north side of State Street. The post and beam frame main block,
approximately 45 feet (front) by 20 feet (side), fronts the approximately 50 foot by 30 foot rear
ell; the front (south) end of the ell appears contemporaneous with the main block; the rear
portion of the ell, with its broad gable roof wall dormer on each side, appears to be a ¢.1850
addition. The rear ell is one and a half stories in height, except along the front portion of the west
side where the exterior wall elevation extends a full two stories. A c. 1950s two-story, shallow
gable roof porch, which projects from the rear (north) end of the ell, is open on the first story,
and enclosed on the second story, with an enclosed exterior stairway on the east side. Significant
Georgian features include the Asher Benjamin style front door surround, with its fluted entry
pilasters set on molded bases, supporting a full entablature enriched with a heavy denticulated
cornice. The paired central entrance doors, with rectangular, opaque glass lights, appear to be a
late nineteenth century replacement. Main block window surrounds have architrave trim, and
heavy Georgian style caps top the window surrounds on the main block first story, and second
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story gable end windows. Windows are primarily 6/6 double hung sash, with two small, square
openings (missing sash) in each gable peak of the main block. A gable roof dormer and a shed
roof dormer on the east roof slope of the ell appear to be historic. Clapboard siding covers the
main block front facade and west gable end; replacement synthetic siding covers all the other
facades; the rear porch is covered with clapboards, with beaded boards in the tympanum and on
the enclosed stair walls. A simple box cornice trims all eaves with a returning box cornice at the
gable ends of the main block. Asphalt shingles cover the main block roof, sheet metal roofing
covers the other roof surfaces. An historic interior end brick chimney extends from the west end
of the main block, a recently constructed wall chimney spans the east gable end of the main
block, and a brick chimney, centrally located along the ridge line of the ell, appears historic.

The interior of 54 State Street appears generally intact, although it has been divided into five
apartment units. The central hall Georgian plan interior of the main block has been preserved on
both the first and second stories. Many historic interior details remain, including paneled
wainscoting, door and window surrounds with architrave trim, paneled doors with wrought iron
hardware, hardwood flooring, and lime plaster wall surfaces. An original and rare, interior
feature that was recently revealed in the southeast parlor/living room is the interior sliding,
wooden window shutter system. These shutters are built within the wall, adjacent to the window
jambs, and although not now functional, formerly would slide closed, covering the window
openings from the inside of the house. This was originally the home of prominent 18th and 19th
century Windsor physician, Dr. Elisha Phelps. (No photo)

80. 8 Phelps Court, c. 1885. Contributing.

This house is one of two similarly designed buildings constructed c. 1885 as a worker’s housing
on a lot adjacent to, and set back from the rear of 54 State Street. This is a vernacular style, 2 %-
story, gable roof, wood frame, 3x3-bay apartment house, aligned facing west, to the east of 10
Phelps Court. The main block, approximately 44 ft (front) x 27 ft. (side), fronts
contemporaneous, twin rear two story, gable roof ells, approximately 15 ft. (side) x 14 ft. (end)
in size. Distinctive two story, trapezoidal bay windows dominate the front facade and are original
to the building. The c. 1950 one story, shed roof central entrance porch replaces a former one
story porch that spanned the bay windows. The two story shed roof porch on the south gable end,
the nearly full length shed dormer across the front facade, and a narrower shed roof dormer on
the rear roof slope of the main block, appear to have been added around 1950 and are probably
not historic. The windows are primarily 2/2 double hung sash (possibly original sash) and
smaller 6/6 double hung sash are located in the gable peaks and dormer windows. The building
has clapboard siding and asphalt roofing. Trim details include corner and frieze boards, and a
box cornice at the raking eaves. A wooden, three story fire escape at the rear of the building is a
modern addition. Twin brick chimneys are regularly spaced along the ridge line of the main
block, and a similar brick wall chimney on the south wall of the south ell pierces the roof of the
side porch.
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The interior floor plan of the five unit building appears generally intact, and most hardwood
floors remain. A center hall divides separate apartment units on the first two floors, with one
apartment located on the third floor. (No photo)

81. 10 Phelps Court, c. 1885. Contributing.

This is one of two similarly designed buildings constructed as a worker’s housing on a lot
adjacent to, and set back from, the rear of 54 State Street. 10 Phelps Court is a vernacular style, 2
Y-story, gable roof, wood frame, 3x3-bay apartment house, aligned facing south, to the west of 8
Phelps Court. The main block, approximately 44 ft. (front) x 27 ft. (side), front two,
contemporaneous, rear, gable roof ells approximately 15 ft. (side) x 14 ft. (end) in size. The
eastern ell is two stories tall; the western ell is one story tall. Distinctive two story, trapezoidal
bay windows dominate the front facade and are original to the building. A one-story front porch
originally spanned the bay windows; today the front porch with enclosed second story sleeping
porch appears to be a c. 1950 replacement. The small shed roof entrance porch on the east gable
end appears to also date from around 1950. The windows are primarily 2/2 double hung sash
(possibly original); smaller 6/6 double hung sash are located in the gable peaks; paired 8-light
casement windows are located in the sleeping porch; and 6-light casements are located in the rear
faced of the main block between the ell projections. Original siding has been obscured by
replacement synthetic siding, the roof is covered the with asphalt shingles. Cornice bracket
details across the front facade appear historic, and the original returning box cornice remains.
Twin brick chimneys with corbelled caps are regularly spaced along the ridge line of the main
block.

The interior floor plan of the four unit building appears generally intact, and most hardwood
floors remain. A center hall divides separate apartment units on the first two floors, with an
additional bedroom for each second floor apartment located on the third floor. A distinctive
interior feature is the wide Tudor arched opening between the living and dining room in each
unit. (No photo)

82. 1 Runnemede Lane, c. 1870. Contributing.

This is a 1 %-story, cross-gable house with two brick chimneys on the gable peak. The house is
clad in vinyl siding and sits on a brick foundation. The fenestration on the first level has been
altered from its original 3 x 2 bay orientation. The main entrance is on the south fagade and is
now enclosed in a shed roof fenestrated porch. There is also a one-story shed roof addition on the
north fagcade. The windows on the second floor are 6/6 double hung sash and there are smaller
6/6 windows in the gable peaks. Runnemede Lane used to run along the west side of the house
but access is now gained on Maxwell Perkins Lane from Main Street. (Photo 12)

82a. Studio/Storage Building, c. 1980. Non-contributing due to age.

This is a 1 ¥-story, gambrel roofed building with a one-story octagonal addition extending from
the southwest corner of the building. The barn is fenestrated with 6/6 double hung sash and the
addition has single pane fixed light windows. It is non-contributing due to age. (No photo)
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83. 2 Runnemede Lane, c. 1955. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥2-story, gable roof, Colonial Revival Cape style house with a brick chimney at the
gable peak. The house consists of a 5 x 3 bay center structure with eaves center entrance with 6/6
wood double hung wood sash windows. A segmental arch supported by square posts with
latticework between the posts covers the front entrance. There are % sidelights on each side of
the front door. The house is clad with wood clapboards and the house sits on a concrete block
foundation. There is a wing extending from the west facade with a gable roof. From the east
facade extends an enclosed breezeway that connects to a 2-bay garage. By 2011 the latticework
on the front entry porch had been removed.

This house and the house to the east were built on the site of the original Baptist Church on land
owned by William M. Evarts. (Photo 13)

84. 3 Runnemede Lane, c. 1920. Contributing.

This is a small cottage with 3 x 3 bays and a hipped roof sitting on a brick foundation. The
entrance is centrally located on the south fagade. The house is clad in wood shingles and has 6/6
double hung windows. Skylight have been installed on the roof. This structure was noted on the
Sanborn Maps of 1917 as being a shed for the house to the east (75). It served as a laundry, but
was converted to livable space in the 1970s. It, and the house at #2 Runnemede Lane, were built
on the site of the original Baptist Church on land owned by William M. Evarts. (Photo 14)

85. Rite-Aid Pharmacy & Shopping Center, 52 Main Street, c. 1960s. Non-contributing due
to age.

This is a modern shopping center with a metal structure box store currently occupied by Rite-Aid

Pharmacy is deeply recessed on the lot behind the large parking lot. (Photo 270)

86. 72 Main Street, c. 1960s. Non-contributing due to age.

This modern, 2-story storefront block has a plain, vinyl-sided parapet front with large store
windows flanking a recessed center entry. A modern sign above the store windows and entrance
extends all the way across the facade. The second floor has three windows. (Photo 271)

87. Court Square/The Windsor Common/Village Green, 40 State Street, c. 1790/1920.
Contributing.
This tract of land was established as the town commons from early in the town’s history. It has
not changed in size, only in what it has been called. It was routinely used as a gathering for
social and political occasions and as a parade ground for local military groups. The common is
an open tract of land surrounded by mature trees and on the north, east and west perimeters there
are rough granite posts set in the ground with a wood fence with posts and rails attached to
granite posts. A bandstand is located in the southwest corner. Originally, the common was called
“Court Square” because the county courthouse (61) was originally built on the east side where
the old town hall (60) is now located. (The courthouse was moved onto State Street when the
Town Hall was constructed.)
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According to the Windsor Annual Report of 1902, the Village was petitioned “to see if the
Village will vote to erect a Band Stand in some suitable place.” It wasn’t until the 1925 Sanborn
Map that the structure was recorded as having been built. The bandstand is approximately 20” x
20’ with a brick faced platform under a pyramidal roof supported by round metal posts. A plain
metal railing with metal balusters encircles the platform between the posts. The ceiling of the
platform is beaded board divided into quarter sections. The bricks used as facing on the wall
supporting the platform are decorative corduroy bricks. A room with bathrooms and sink was
built in the area below the bandstand platform. The platform is reached by a set of wood steps
and railing set at the north side of the structure. A short flagpole is set at the peak of the roof.
(Photo 15)

88. 1 Dunham Avenue, c. 1930. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥-story, Colonial Revival style house with wide gable roof and entrance on the gable
end. The entrance is covered by a simple, single bay, gable roof porch supported by square posts.
On the main block the large gable roof serves as the porch roof on the south fagade and a shed
roof dormer protrudes from the roof slope. The house is clad in vinyl siding and the windows are
1/1 modern replacements with the exception of the front gable window which is likely original
and has a diamond pane pattern all over. (Photo 16)

88a. Garage, c. 1930. Contributing.
This is a single bay garage with gable roof clad with vinyl siding. (No photo)

89. 2 Dunham Avenue, c. 1930. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥-story, 2 x 3 bay, Colonial Revival style house with gambrel roof and entrance on
the gable end. There is a one-story hipped roof porch extending across the front (west) facade
supported by turned posts with a railing of turned balusters. On the rear facade is a one-story
addition. There are small shed roof dormers on the roof slopes. The house is clad in vinyl siding,
the roof is covered in standing seam metal panels and the windows have been updated with
modern 1/1 double hung sash. (Photo 17)

89a. Garage, c. 1930. Contributing.
This is a single bay garage with gable roof clad with vinyl siding. (No photo)

90. 3 Dunham Avenue, c. 1930. Contributing.

This is a 1 Y2-story, 5 x 2 bay, Colonial Revival style house with a steeply pitched gable roof and
eaves front center entrance. There is a large brick exterior chimney on the south fagcade enclosed
on the first floor by a flat roof, one-story addition. On the north fagade there is a gable-roof open
breezeway connecting the house to the one-bay, gable roof garage. On the rear roof plane is a
large shed roof dormer and on the front slope are two gable roof dormers. The house is clad in
wood clapboards and the windows are 6/6 double hung sash. (Photo 18)
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91. 58 G Company Road (formerly 30 State Street), c. 1900. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, 3 x 2 bay, steeply pitched gable roof house with cornice returns with the main
entrance located eaves center on the east facade. There is a one-bay gable roof porch covering
the front entrance that is supported by square posts. The house is clad in clapboards and sits on a
brick foundation. The windows are 2/2 double hung sash but some of the window bays on the
north and south facades have been covered with siding. The windows are framed by decorative
false slat shutters. There is a one-story shed roof addition at the southwest corner of the main
block. The house can be reached by a steep staircase on the west side of the Old Courthouse on
State Street or by going behind Windsor House. (Photo 272)

92. 76 Main Street, ¢.1925. Contributing.

This is a one-story commercial building situated at the southwest corner of Main and State
Streets. The front (east) facade has two large bays situated between brick faced supports The
bays have a deeply recessed opening between large plate glass windows in metal framing with
large panes angled from the door to the exterior wall. There is a span of three large specialty
glass panes across the top of each bay. The bottoms of the bays are paneled with wood and have
decorative molding. The south fagade has two large bays between brick posts that are the same
as on the front facade except that the east bay does not contain an entrance and is just two large
panes of glass. The building may have been designed to have a third bay similar to the other two,
but this area is a solid wall of brick. At the very end (west) of this wall is a single door recessed
in an arched doorway with a fixed fanlight transom. The brickwork of the door arch is made of
two rows of brick butt ends with a keystone block and anchor block. The brick walls and posts
support a wide flat fascia with a raking cornice below a wide flat parapet surrounding the roof.
(Photo 271)

93. 9 Depot Avenue, ¢.1880. Contributing.

This is a 1 ¥%-story gable roof building clad in narrow wood clapboards with a tall parapet false
front on the south facade. The flat parapet is topped with a fascia and cornice. In the upper level
of the parapet is a pair of 2/2 double hung wood sash windows. The front fagade has two bays
with a door covered by a gable roof door hood on the west bay and a paneled overhead garage
door on the east bay. The roof is covered with metal and has wide overhanging eaves. There is a
door with a fixed transom overhead, located eaves center on the west facade. The building is
irregularly fenestrated with 2/2 and 6/6 wood sash windows and there is a single pane picture
window on the west facade.

The structure has been the home of many different types of businesses including a meat &
grocery store c¢. 1917 and a dry cleaning establishment in 1925. It is currently the home of a
general contracting firm. (Photo 19)

94. 25 Depot Avenue, ¢.1880. Contributing.

This is a two-story, rectangular massed, gable roofed building with a brick chimney at the gable
peak. The building is clad in narrow clapboards and has plain corner boards. It still has some 6/6
wood sash double hung windows but is primarily fenestrated with newer 1/1 windows. The
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structure sits on a low stone foundation. A modern door is located in the western side of the front
facade. The building is what remains of the lumber business that was located next to the railroad
tracks. The current structure was used as the office area for the business and the lumber sheds
extended from the north fagade up the railroad tracks. (Photo 20)

95. Constitution Common, 81 Main Street, 1976. Non-contributing due to age.

This small park was created to celebrate the United States bicentennial celebration in 1976. It is
bordered by Main Street to the west and Depot Street to the north. The park has an open space in
the center with a large flagpole situated slightly to the south from the center. In the southwest
corner of the park is a large rough granite boulder with a metal plaque stating that “Original site
of Constitution House 1777”. There are mature trees along the south, east and north perimeter of
the park with benches situated under the trees facing the center of the plot. A statue of a soldier
from WWII and a water fountain are located in the northwest corner on the park. The park is not
contributing due to age but may become eligible in 2026. (Photo 21)

96. 119 Main Street, c. 1970. Non-contributing due to age.

This modern 1-story frame structure houses an insurance agency and is set back from the
sidewalk behind a small parking lot. It has 3 large multi-paned picture windows and a glazed
modern entry door on the front facade. (Photo 22)

97. Maynards Auto Parts Building, 127 Main Street, ¢.1950. Contributing.

This building is one-story on the front (west) facade but as the land slopes down from Main
Street is becomes a two-story building as it extends along River Street. Built to be a showroom,
it is a very wide and long building. The front fagade is brick faced and has large plate class
windows set in aluminum frames across the southern % of the first floor. The northern % of the
facade is a recessed entranceway also fenestrated with large fixed windows and transom lights. It
has a wide brick parapet extending across the front facade with short tails on the north and south
facades. The brick facade wraps around the building for a short distance on the south facade and
then the wall is constructed of concrete. The north wall of the first level is entirely of brick with
concrete forming the basement level. This was previously the site of the second Baptist Church
which burned in the 20th century. (Photo 23)

98. 131 Main Street, c. 1925. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, commercial brick building facing Main Street. The first floor of the front facade
is equally divided into three large plate glass windows with fixed transoms above and doors to
the stores and the floor above. The doors and windows are set in deep wood frames with heavy
molding trim at the top of the units. There are 3 bays across the second floor of the front fagade.
The bay to the north has one large fixed glass pane. The other two bays are paired 6/1 double
hung wood sash windows. At the top of the building, on the front and side facades, is a false
parapet made from wood panels with an entablature with wood molding trim. A pediment with a
false fanlight is located at the top of the parapet on the front facade. The entablature is
embellished with the words “Constitution Bakery”, lettering that is not related to the past or
present use of the extant building. The second floor of the north fagcade has modern replacement
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windows; on the south facade the windows are 6/6 double hung wood sash. The rear facade was
originally wood clapboards but is now covered with vinyl siding. There is a large gable roof
dormer projecting from the roof on the rear facade. The current building is what remains of The
Strand Theatre after a fire destroyed the rear portion and was at one time one of Windsor’s five
movie theatres. The theatre building replaced an earlier structure that housed a bakery in 1917.
(Photo 24)

99. 1.0.0.F Hall, 143 Etta Frasier Drive (formerly 143 Main Street), c. 1840/1925.
Contributing.

This building has had many changes from its original layout. The two-story, 5 x 2 bay, gable roof
block with eaves front entrance sits on a low stone foundation and is covered with narrow wood
clapboards. There is a 1 %-story, gable roof wing extending from the north facade. This was a
one-story structure until 1901 when the additional floor was added. The two units are part of the
original structure and there were various additions and subtractions over the years. It became the
1.0.0O.F Hall c. 1925 and is currently used as professional office space. (Photo 25)

166. Shell Station, 55 Main Street, c. 2000. Non-contributing due to age.
A modern gas station with large plastic and metal canopy and small 1 story convenience store
behind. (Photo 273)

280. Gulf Station, 51 Main Street, c. 1970s. Non-contributing due to age.

This modern gas station has a modest metal canopy over the filling station and a flat roofed, 1
story building containing an office and 3 bay garage behind. (Photo 202)
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Boundary Increase Overview

The Boundary Increase adds the 256-acre Paradise Park, the areas to the west along State, Pine &
Jacob Streets, east along Bridge, McCarty, River, Jarvis, National, Foster, and Durkee Streets,
Coolidge Court, and Central, Depot, and Railroad Avenues as well as north and south along
Main Street. Inclusion of these historic neighborhoods, recreational and industrial areas presents
a more complete picture of Windsor than the existing historic district, to which they are
contiguous.

The primarily residential areas of Bridge, McCarty, Pine, Jacob, River, and State Streets have a
mixture of simple to elaborate houses that primarily date from the 19th century but include some
18th as well as early 20th century properties. In the primarily 20th century area of Depot
Avenue, Central Avenue, Durkee Street, Coolidge Court, and the compact workers neighborhood
of Jarvis, National & Foster, there has been little major change in the past fifty years. Rather, the
changes to the largely vernacular houses are minor and cosmetic. They continue to convey a
strong sense of the industrial development of which they are a part. The National
Acme/Goodyear and Cone-Blanchard complexes, as well as industrial properties near the
railroad tracks add a critical industrial dimension to the historic district. These early to mid-20th
century factories and rail warehouse properties represent a range of utilitarian architecture that
grew up around the railroad and were modified to adjust to more truck-based transportation
system. Despite several non-contributing properties on the industrial campuses, there are intact
and original properties that are extremely important in Windsor’s story. These industries were
the underlying driving force in the development of the 20th century residential and commercial
properties of the village that surround them.

In addition, the large, municipally-owned Paradise Park wraps around the village on the north
and west and represents an important designed historic landscape that is integral to the
development and history of the village itself.

The Boundary Increase documents 303 resources: 238 contributing buildings; 3 contributing
sites; 2 contributing structures; 58 non-contributing buildings; and 2 non-contributing structures.
The buildings generally retain integrity of location, design, setting, feeling and association.
Although many of the houses now have synthetic siding, many others retain integrity of
workmanship and materials. Descriptions and photos prepared in 1999 and the early 2000s were
rechecked in 2011 and 2014 to ensure current accuracy.

Inventory of Resources Located in the Boundary Increase Area:

100. 157 Marcy Court, c. 1900. Contributing.

This is a simple, 1 %-story gable roof house with 3 x 2 bays that sits on a brick foundation. There
is a brick chimney at the peak of the steeply pitched roof. The house is clad in pressed wood
shingles and the windows are original 2/2 double hung wood sash with some windows having
been replaced with 1/1 sash windows. There is a gable roof door hood over the side hall entrance
on the front (south) facade. A one-story gable roof ell, with brick chimney, is attached to the rear
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facade and extends to the east. The south facade of the ell has three bays; a door with shed roof
hood, a 2/2 window and a plank door with latch. On the Sanborn Insurance Map of 1901, it
shows that this house and the house at 159 Marcy Court were mirror images of each other and
that they were connected at the east fagade of the ell. (Photos 8 & 26)

101. 159 Marcy Court, c. 1900. Contributing.

This is a simple, 1 %-story gable roof house with 3 x 2 bays that sits on a brick foundation. The
house is clad in vinyl siding and the windows have been replaced with modern 1/1 double hung
sash. A small shed roof dormer has been installed on the east roof slope. There is an attached
one-story gable roof ell that has been converted to use as a one-bay garage. There is a one-story
shed roof addition on the north fagade of the main block. On the Sanborn Insurance Map of
1901, it shows that this house and the house at 157 Marcy Court were mirror images of each
other and that they were connected at the west facade of the ell. (Photos 8 & 26)

102. 2 Wright Court, c. 1905. Non-contributing due to alterations.

Originally, a 2-story, 3 x 3 bay, foursquare style house with hipped roof and brick chimney at the
gable peak, this house has had its hipped roof replaced with a gable roof providing an attic story.
The c. 2003 new gable roof has cornice returns and is of similar scale and dimension to the roof
on 3 Wright Court (103). The house sits on an ashlar-faced concrete block foundation and is clad
in vinyl siding. The main entrance is located on the east facade and is enclosed in a fenestrated
porch with hipped roof. Once supported by Tuscan columns, it now has a simpler band of
windows sitting on a solid kneewall. The windows are 1/1 modern double hung sash. There is a
small, hipped roof porch with two solid walls covering an ancillary entrance on the south fagade.
It is non-contributing due to alterations. (Photo 27)

103. 3 Wright Court, c. 1920. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, 2 ¥%-story gable roof house with an enclosed porch that extends across the
gable-end front facade. The hipped porch roof is supported by Tuscan columns that sit on a solid
porch rail. The house is covered in vinyl siding and the windows are modern 1/1 double hung
sash. The house is irregularly fenestrated and the foundation is ashlar-faced concrete block.
There is a small-hipped roof extension off the east facade that encloses an ancillary entrance to
the house. The gable roof has cornice returns and a brick chimney at the gable peak. (Photo 27)

104. 4 Wright Court, c. 1965. Non-contributing due to age.

This is a one-story, Ranch style house with low-pitched gable roof and a large brick chimney at
the gable end on the west fagade. There are 4 bays across the front (north) facade with the front
entrance located eaves center. To the west of the front door is a large picture window with
narrow 1/1 double hung sash windows on either side. To the left of the front door is a pair of 1/1
windows and further to the east is a smaller 1/1 window. The house sits on a concrete foundation
and is clad in wide wood clapboard with flat profile. It is non-contributing due to age. (Photo 28)
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105. 158 Main Street, c. 1925. Contributing.

A 1 Y-story, low-pitched hipped roof, bungalow type house with 5 bays across the front (east)
facade. Projecting from the front roof slope is a small-hipped roof dormer with a 6-paned
window. The house sits on a poured concrete foundation and is clad in wood shingles with flat
corner boards. There is a low-pitched gable roof addition extending from the rear facade. The
windows on the front facade have been replaced with modern 1/1 double hung sash, but the other
facades retain 6/1 sash windows. The front door has 12 fixed lights. The owner of the house has
found small round millstones and tools used for shoe repair when he was digging a new
foundation and believes that his house sits on an early local refuse dump. (Photo 30)

106. Merchants Bank, 160 Main Street, c. 1990. Non-contributing due to age.
This is a small modern brick-faced bank building with a flat metal roof that overhangs the brick
on all sides. The building is surrounded by a parking lot. Non-contributing due to age. (Photo 29)

107. Cumberland Farms, 169 Main Street, ¢. 1990. Non-contributing due to age.
This is a modern convenience store with a large fronting parking lot and gas station. (Photo 31)

108. 170 Main Street, c. 1880. Contributing.

This is a 2-story, cross gable house with an enclosed fenestrated porch extending across the front
(east) facade with a short, flat roof. The house sits on a brick foundation and is clad in narrow
clapboards with 6/6 double hung wood sash. There is a 2-story gable roof ell that extends from
the rear facade. It is irregularly fenestrated with 6/6 sash windows and a long window made from
a band of five six-light windows set in a row. The ell was originally one-story and was increased
to two floors c. 1889. The front of the house is almost hidden due to the overgrowth of trees and
bushes. There is a barn in extremely poor repair to the rear of the house. (Photo 32)

109. 172 Main Street, c. 1820/1915. Contributing.

This is a 2 ¥2-story, gable roof, very plain Federal/Greek Revival Style house that has been
divided into a duplex with a c. 1915 covered porch across the front that creates a double entrance
on the eaves front east facade. The original central entrance is enclosed in the fenestrated porch.
It appears to be a traditional Georgian plan 5 by 4 bay house and is covered with clapboards. The
metal covered roof has cornice returns at the gable ends. The windows are 2/2 double hung wood
sash and the structure sits on a brick foundation. The flat roof porch has a slight pediment over
the entrances to the duplex. There are two brick chimneys at the roof peak and there is a shed
roof porch across the rear fagade. The rear porch has solid walls with 2/2 windows set in the
clapboard sided walls. According to local historian, Edwin Battison, this was originally the home
of inventor and gunsmith Nicanor Kendall, who was one of the principals of the noted firm of
Robbins, Kendall & Lawrence that built the National Historic Landmark 1845 brick armory just
down the street. (Photo 33)

110. 176 Main Street, c. 1910. Contributing.
This is a 2 ¥.-story, Foursquare style house with a hipped roof sitting on an ashlar-faced
foundation has Queen Anne flourishes. The 3 x 3 bay house has a flat roofed porch extending
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across the front (east) fagcade that is supported by four Tuscan columns sitting on a solid
kneewall covered with wood shingles. The first floor of the exterior is clad in narrow wood
clapboards and the second floor is covered in wood shingles that flare out slightly where they
meet the clapboard siding. The roof has wide overhanging eaves with decorative rafter tails that
are repeated on the hipped roof dormer on the front roof slope and the gable end of the of the two
story bay window on the south fagade. Also in the gable peak of the bay window is a fanlight
with a wide architrave and a keystone in the frame. The house is fenestrated with 1/1 double
hung sash except for a large picture window in the south bay of the front facade. There is a small
partially enclosed flat roof porch on the rear fagcade. (Photo 34)

111.  “Wash ‘n Dry”, 183 Main Street, c. 1970. Non-Contributing due to age.

This is a modern Ranch Style 1-story commercial block that has a very shallow gable roof with a
cross gable over the glazed entry. The building is sheathed in vertical wood siding topped by a
band of horizontal metal clapboards below the eaves. It is recessed behind a parking lot. (Photo
31)

112. 187 Main Street, c. 1970. Non-Contributing due to age.
This is a modern 1-story, gable roofed commercial building clad in aluminum horizontal siding.
(Photo 35)

112a. Grist Mill Foundation, c. 1791. Contributing.

These are the rubble stone foundation and main walls of one or more early gristmills recently
rebuilt by archaeology students. The stone has been built up using concrete mortar. There
appears to be different, rougher stone at the lower sections. The rebuilt foundation is roughly a
square with stone walls approximately 3’ thick and 20°-25 high. There are two stone arches in
the western wall facing the former dam — one at the brook level where there is still an arched
opening, another is higher up the wall and is presently filled in with stone. On the south wall near
the top is a small narrow rectangular opening. This structure was severely damaged by flood
waters from Tropical Storm Irene in August of 2011.

This site as well as the foundry site across the brook, would have drawn water power from the
lower dam which was wooden and located somewhere east of the Main Street Bridge.
Photographs dated to 1898 and c. 1914 show both the 3-story stone gristmill and a 3-story frame
building opposite across the brook. The photographs show more windows in the stone walls than
can be seen now. The later photograph shows a metal penstock resting on stone piers and the
1898 picture shows the dam as well as an earlier building in disrepair (no roof structure) right at
the dam site (on the north bank and above the gristmill.) This building probably corresponds to
another part of the gristmill as it is shown on the Sanborn maps of the 1880s. (No photo)

113. 5 Bridge Street, c, 1850. Contributing.

This is a vernacular south facing gable front, 1% story, 2x2 bay, main block with 1-story, 2x2
bay gable roofed rear wing attached to the north wall of the main block. The wing’s east wall is
recessed behind the east wall of the main block. A 1x1-bay shed is attached to the north wall of
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the rear wing. Asphalt shingle roofing, wood clapboard siding, wood trim, and stone foundation
throughout. The main block has projecting molded cornices, corniced returns, wide band frieze,
and corner boards. The main block’s south facing gable is oriented toward the street, but the
primary entry is located on the main block’s east facing eaves facade, perpendicular to the street.
Front door in right bay of eaves facade has raised panels, glazed upper insert, and plain surround.
It is flanked by one small Queen Anne window on right. A small, hipped roofed Queen Anne
porch covers the entry door and Queen Anne window. The porch cornice is decorated with a
wide frieze board and stick valance supported by turned wood ¥ posts, which in turn rest upon a
railing made of squared balusters. Facade’s left bay has one 6/1 sash. The gable side facing the
street has symmetrical fenestration, including louvered attic opening in the gable peak, two upper
story and two first story 6/1 sash. West wall has one 6/1 sash in the first bay and one small sash
in second bay; on the second story is one small 6-ligt fixed sash in second bay. There is a brick
chimney on the west slope of the main roof. The wing’s east facade has a bracketed, hooded
entry beside a 6/1 sash. Shed has paneled door beside small 6-light window. (Photo 36)

114. 7 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, south facing gable front, 1%2- story, 3x3-bay main block with a 1-story, 2x2-
bay gable roofed rear wing attached to the main block’s north wall. The house has asphalt
shingle roofing, aluminum siding, wood trim, and a stone foundation. The front gable facade of
the main block has a louvered attic opening and two 2/2 sash on the second story. The first story
features an enclosed, full width, flat roofed porch lighted by 1/1 aluminum sash and accessed by
an aluminum door on the west. The porch also has a projecting molded cornice, aluminum sided
Y wall, wood lattice skirt. The west fagade of the main block is lighted by 2/2 sash on the first
story and one small 2-light sliding window on the upper story. The east facade features a single
story, shed roofed projection lighted by 2/2 sash. The wing’s east wall is contiguous with the
projection’s east wall and is lighted by one 2/1 sash and a smaller replacement window. The
wing’s west facing eaves wall has an entry way and 2/2 sash in the right bay, with a shed door in
the left bay, under a metal canopy. There are brick ridge chimneys on the main block and rear
wing. (Photo 37)

115. 9 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, south facing gable front, 12 story, 3x2 b-bay main block with a 1-story rear
wing attached to north wall of main block. The wing’s west wall, where its entry is located, is
recessed behind the main block’s west wall. Attached to the wing on its west side is a 1-story, 2-
bay wide, gable roofed garage. The main block and wing have asphalt shingle roofing, vinyl
siding and trim, and a stone foundation. The garage has vertical board siding and glazed and
paneled overhead sliding doors on the gable front. The main block’s gable fagade has a small
louvered attic opening in the peak and two 1/1 sash in the upper story. The first story features
¢.1930 full width, enclosed porch covered by a shallow hipped roof with a small gable peak over
the door. There is plain frieze under the projection cornice. The porch door is surrounded by
sidelights, deep wood reveals and molded corner boards, and is flanked by three louvered
windows on the right and four of the same on the left. The solid porch base is covered in vinyl
siding with a skirt of wood lattice. The main block’s east elevation features a steeply pitched
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cross gable. The east wall has 1/1 sash and the west wall is lighted by four sash, two in each of
the first story bays. There is one brick ridge chimney on the main block. (Photo 38)

116. 9% Bridge Street, c. 1890. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, 1 % story, 2x2 bay, with south facing gable front, asphalt shingle roofing,
asbestos shingle siding, wood trim, and concrete foundation. There is a bracketed gable over the
door in the front fagcade’s right bay. The house has irregular fenestration with 1/1 sash with plain
surround throughout, including 3 on the front facade, 2 on the east, and 1 on the west. A rear
shed attachment, ¢.1960, is 1x1-bay, with an entry on the west facade. There is one brick ridge
chimney. (Photo 39)

117. 11 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This property consists of three sections. Two vernacular, 1 % story, 3x2 gable roofed blocks are
connected by a 1-story, 1x1-bay, gable roofed wing. All three sections have asphalt shingle
roofing, vinyl siding, and combined brick and poured concrete foundation. There is synthetic
trim on the cornices, cornice returns, corner boards, and porch elements. The house has irregular
fenestration with 2/1 sash throughout. The front section’s south facing gable front fagade is
lighted by two upper and two lower story windows. This facade also features a small Colonial
Revival porch over the entry in the right bay. The porch has a gable roof supported by square %2
posts resting on sided %2 walls. The east facade features a 3-sided, 1-story bay window and the
west facade is lighted by 2 windows. The connector wing has an entry porch on the east facing
eaves front and 2 sash on the west facade. The rear section has a screened front porch on the
south facing gable front. The east facade is lighted by 3 sash and the west fagade, first story has 2
sash and one fixed light on upper story. A 1x1 bay shed is attached to the north wall of the east
bay of this section. Each section has one brick ridge chimney. (Photo 39)

117a. Garage, c. 1915 Contributing.
This is a 1 story, gable front garage with clapboard siding, wide board trim around door. (No
photo)

117b. Open Shed, c. 1915. Non-contributing due to deterioration.
(No photo)

118. 14 Bridge St., c. 1820. Contributing.

This is a Gothic Revival, 1 % story. 5x3-bay north facing eaves front main block with central
Gothic gable roof and 1-story, 1x3-bay rear ell extending from main block’s south wall, west
bay. The ell’s west facing wall is contiguous with the main block’s west wall. The house has
asphalt shingle roofing, clapboard siding, wood trim, and a stone foundation. The trim includes
corner boards and frieze boards under projecting, molded cornices. Windows are2/2 sash, except
where noted. The front facade is lighted by one small hooded window in the gable and two
windows each flanking the front entry, which is covered by a projecting, flat roof porch hood
with molded cornice and elaborate brackets with pendant finials. The entry is made of a 6-
paneled wood door behind an aluminum storm door and surrounded by a paneled wood transom,
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pilasters, deep reveals, and 2-paned sidelights. The east facade has one sash in the gable and on
the first story, a door in the left bay and 1 sash in each of the center and right bays. The west
facade has an attic opening and one sash in the gable and the first story has a door in the right
bay and 1 sash in each of the left and center bays. Attached to the main block’s south facing rear
wall, is a 1x1-bay shed in the east bay with sash on each of its east and south facades. The ell’s
south facing rear elevation features a second story open wood deck. Beneath the deck floor on
the rear wall, first story is one 6/6 sash. The ell’s east facade has two 2/2 sash in the left bay, one
6/6 sash in the right bay. There is one brick chimney on the ell’s east slope. (Photo 40)

118a. Shed, c. 1990. Non-contributing due to age.
This is a small, modern metal equipment shed. (No photo)

119. 15 Bridge Street, c. 1880/c. 1930s. Contributing.

This is a vernacular 2 % story, 5x5 bay, south facing eaves front, with asphalt shingled gable
roof, aluminum siding, wood and aluminum trim, and stone foundation. A secondary, flat roof
extends from the gable roof’s north facing eaves side out over the 4th bay. Windows are 2/2
double hung sash. Fenestration is irregular. Centered front entry on south facing eaves fagade
features a glazed and paneled wood door behind and aluminum storm door. Over the wood door
is a divided transom light. A Colonial Revival shed roofed, single story porch, with squared
wood %2 posts resting on aluminum sided %2 wall, wraps around the south facing front facade and
west gable wall. Entry onto this porch is gained at two locations-the intersection of the south and
west porches, and at the left side of the west porch. The two entries, including steps, are covered
by small pedimented hoods. The porch is 5 bays on the south and 4 bays on the west. A 5th bay
on the west, that is enclosed and not part of the porch proper, features a second story, shed
roofed porch. (Photo 41)

119a. Garage, c. 1914. Contributing.
This is a 1-story garage, 2 bays wide with gable front, vertical board siding, and overhead sliding
doors. Shed attachment on left. (No photo)

120. 19 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This vernacular 2 ¥ story, 3x2-bay south facing gable front, side hall plan main block has
simple, Queen Anne touches. A 1 % story, 1x1-bay gable roofed, clapboarded barn is attached to
the main block’s north facing rear wall. The barn’s east wall is recessed behind the main block’s
east wall. The main block has asphalt shingle roofing, clapboard siding, wood trim, stone and
brick foundation. There are cornice returns, a wide band frieze and corner boards. There are 2/2
sash windows on the front fagade: one in gable, three on second story, two on first story in left
and center bays. The side entry in the right bay is made of a 6-paneled door surrounded by a 2-
light transom, 2-light % side lights, and a wide band architrave trim. A Queen Anne porch with
projection molded cornice, plain frieze, turned wood Y2 posts, square posted balustrade, and
lattice skirt covers the entry door. On the second story of the east wall are two 2/2 sash in the
right bay and one window opening that is boarded up in the left bay. The first story is lighted by
three 2/2 sash. The west elevation features a Queen Anne 2-story gable roofed projection. The
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upper story contains a squared bay window with three 2/2 sash. The lower story has a 3-sided
bay window with canted sides recessed with scrolled bracket accents under the squared bay
corner above. There is one wide 2/2 sash flanked by narrow 1/1 sash on the first floor of the bay.
Other fenestration on the west elevation includes 6/6, 2/2 and fixed pane sash. There is one brick
ridge chimney on the west slope of the main block. The barn’s entry on the east facade is a
vertical board door with plain wood surround. The west fagade has some shingle siding. On the
rear facade is a second story barn door opening, boarded up. The barn has a ridge chimney.
(Photo 42)

121. 21 Bridge Street, c. 1890. Non-contributing due to alterations.

This is a gable front, south facing 2-story 3x3-bay main block with 1-story, 1x2-bay shed
attachment on east facade, rear bay. Asphalt shingle roofing, wood shingle siding. There is an
enclosed porch along the gable fagade. Non-contributing due to alterations. (Photo 43)

122. 23 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, south facing gable front, 1 Y% story, 3x2-bay main block with 1-story, 1x1-
bay gable roofed rear wing attached to main block’s north wall. The wing’s east wall is recessed
behind the main block’s north wall. The main block has asphalt shingle roofing, vinyl siding,
wood trim, stone foundation and a projecting molded roof cornice. The windows are 6/6
replacement sash. The front facade has a small louvered opening in the gable peak, two sash on
the upper story and two larger sash on the first story, in the left and middle bays. A single leaf
door in the right bay has % side lights, boarded up, and plain architrave trim. The front facade
features full width Queen Anne style, flat roofed porch supported by three turned half-posts
which rest in turn on a balustrade with square upper rail and square balusters. The porch cornice
is decorated with a stick valance. The steps with turned post railing lead up onto the porch. The
main block also features a wood deck on the east elevation and a 2-story cement block exterior
chimney on the west elevation. The rear wing has vertical board siding and an entry on the east
side. There is one brick chimney on the west slope of the rear wing. (Photo 44)

122a. Garage, c. 1965. Non-contributing due to age.
This is a 1-story, 1 bay wide, gable front garage with vertical board siding, off-center paneled
and lighted overhead sliding doors. Non-contributing due to age. (No photo)

123. 25 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, south facing gable front, 1 %2-story, 3x3-bay main block with 1-story, 3x1-
bay side ell attached to the main block’s east facing eaves wall, north bay. The house has asphalt
shingle roofing, clapboard siding, wood trim, and stone foundation. The windows are 2/2 sash
with plain surround, except where noted. The main block has projecting molded cornices, frieze
boards and corner boards. Cornice returns on gable front facade are partly obscured by the front
porch roof. There is small 1/1 sash in the gable above the porch. The front facade, first story, has
a paneled door with simple wood surround in the right bay and 2 windows in the left and middle
bays. A full width hipped roof, Queen Anne style front porch is supported on three turned half-
posts which rest in turn on a square upper rail and square balusters. The projecting molded
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cornice is decorated with a square post valance. There is a lattice skirt beneath the porch deck.
The west wall is lighted by three sash and a fourth window in the first bay is boarded up. The
west facade also features a 2-story exterior cement block chimney. The east wall has three sash.
The ell’s eaves front fenestration includes a multi-paned door with aluminum storm cover in the
left bay and two windows in the middle and right bays. A full-width porch is sheltered under the
eaves overhand, which rests on three square posts. The wood porch deck has partial lattice skirt.
There are cornice returns on the ell’s east facing gable side and a brick ridge chimney. An
additional single story, 2-bay attached garage in rear has metal gable roof, clapboard siding,
overhead sliding doors and open wood deck. (Photo 45)

123a. Shed, c. 1990. Non-contributing due to age.
This is a shed, 2-bays wide with vertical board siding. (No photo)

124. Creamery, 20 Bridge Street (formerly 26A Bridge Street), c. 1920. Contributing.
This is a brick commercial, 1-story, 4x6-bay with asphalt shingled gable roof, stone and concrete
foundation. The original window openings are filled in with vertical board paneling and smaller
1/1 sash, with concrete lintels and sills. There is vertical board siding in the upper gable wall of
the north facing front fagade. An enclosed entry porch in the right bay is a contemporary
addition. There is an exterior brick chimney with concrete block extension on the west wall. This
is the former Windsor Creamery Building. (Photo 46)

125. 26 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a brick Greek Revival, north facing gable front, side hall plan, 1 ¥%-story, 3x2-bay main
block. Attached to the south facing rear wall of the main block is a gable roofed, 1-story, 1x1-
bay wing. Attached to the wing’s south facing rear wall is a second, gable roofed wing, 1 % -
story, 1x2-bay. The wings’ east walls are recessed behind the east wall of the main block. The
main block has a slate roof, wood trim, stone foundation and wide frieze bands beneath
projecting, molded cornices. The windows are 6/6 double hung sash with simple wood frames,
surmounted by rectangular stone lintels. The front facade fenestration is symmetrical with a
louvered attic opening in the gable over the two upper story sash. There are two sash also on the
first story, middle and right bays. The left bay contains a paneled wood door with storm door,
slightly recessed behind the main wall. The door surround includes wood reveals, % divided
sidelights, and a transom light covered with wood paneling flush to the front wall. The entire
entry is surmounted by a rectangular stone lintel. The east elevation has three sash and the west
elevation is lighted by four sash. There is a brick chimney on the west slope. Both the first and
second wings are clad in wood shingle siding. The second wing features gable dormers with
slender, 4/4 paired windows occurring on both the east and west slopes. The second wing east
and west facades each have an entry in the right bay. The west facade entry is sheltered by a
hipped roof enclosure. There is a brick chimney on the roof ridge. Attached to the second wing is
a 1-story shed with lean-to roof. On the main block, a wood wheelchair ramp descends from the
front entry to west side of building. (Photo 47)
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125a. Garage, c. 1991. Non-contributing due to age.
This is a 2-bay, gable front garage with vertical board siding. (No photo)

125b. Aluminum shed, c. 1980. Non-contributing due to age.
(No photo)

125c. Aluminum shed, c. 1970. Non-contributing due to age.
(No photo)

126. 28 Bridge Street, c. 1920. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, north facing gable front, 1 ¥-story, 3x2-bay main block with a 1-story, 2x2-
bay gabled roofed rear wing attached to the main block’s south facing gable wall and a 1 %2-
story, gable roofed barn attached to the wing’s south facing wall. The main block has asphalt
shingle roofing, vinyl siding, wood trim, brick and a concrete foundation. There are projecting
molded cornices. The front facade has two 6/6 double hung sash windows in the gable and two
taller, 2/2 sash on the first story in the middle and right bays. A wood door in the left bay is
lighted and paneled and covered with a storm door. The door surround includes a plain wide
board which is in turn surrounded by fluted architrave trim with corner blocks. The door may
replace an earlier doorway. A full width front porch features a flat roof with projecting molded
cornice and wide frieze trim supported by slender classical style columns in clusters of two and
three. The columns rest upon low, battered, shingled porch piers. Below the porch floor is a
lattice skirt. The east facade is lighted by two 6/6 sash and the west facade has one 2/2 and two
6/6 sash. The main block has two concrete block chimneys, one located on west roof slope, and
one 2-story exterior, on west facade. The rear wing has asphalt shingle roofing and wood shingle
siding. The wing’s east facing eaves front has a covered porch on the right bay and a door in the
left bay. A double shed wall dormer on this same side has 6-light, fixed sash windows. The barn
is covered with a metal roof and sheathed in wood shingles. On the barn’s east fagade is a second
story barn door. A first story door is covered by a pedimented canopy. On the barn’s west facade
is a small shed attachment. A shed roofed deck is attached to the barn’s rear facade. (Photo 48)

127. 29 Bridge Street, c. 1812. Contributing.

This is a Federal period brick Classic Cottage, 1 %2-story, 5x3-bay, south facing main block with
a €.1860, 1 ¥2-story, 2x1-bay barn/garage attached to the main block’s rear, north facing wall.
The east wall of the barn/garage is recessed behind the main block’s rear, north facing wall. The
main block’s south facing gable is oriented toward the street, but the primary entry is located on
the main block’s east facing eaves facade, perpendicular to the street. The main block has a
raised seam metal roof, wood and vinyl trim, and stone and brick foundation. There are
projecting, molded cornices, frieze band, and return cornices. The front door is in the middle bay
of the east facing eaves facade. On each side of the door are two 2/2 double hung sash windows.
The door is also covered by a flat roofed porch supported on 2 turned half-posts which rest in
turn on a balustrade with square upper rail and square balusters. The projection cornice is
trimmed with a wide frieze board and square post valance. A gable dormer above the porch has
paired 2/2 windows. The south facing gable is lighted by two 1/1 sash in the second story and by
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three 2/2 sash surmounted by relieving arches on the first story. There is one brick chimney on
the main roof ridge. The barn/garage has asphalt shingle roofing and clapboard siding. The east
facade’s left bay contains a hinged door and window. The right bay contains a second hinged
door, and overhead sliding garage door, and a small 2/2 light. The west facade is lighted by three
6/6 sash with plain surround. (Photo 49)

128. 30 Bridge Street, c. 1830. Contributing.

This is a Greek Revival, 1 1/2—story, 3x4-bay north facing gable front, side hall plan main block
with 1-story, 2x2-bay gable roofed wing projecting from the rear, south facing gable end. The
east facing wall of the wing is recessed behind the east wall of the main block. Attached to the
rear, south facing wall of the wing is a 1 1/2 — story, 3x2-bay gable roofed barn. The house has
asphalt shingle roofing, clapboard siding, and wood trim throughout. There is a stone foundation
on the main block. Also on the main block are projecting molded cornices with wide band frieze,
cornice returns, and corner pilasters with full entablature. All windows in the main block have
molded frames. The main block front fagade fenestration is two 1/1 sash in the gable with two
taller, 2/2 sash on the first story, in the left and center bays. The front entry in the right bay
consists of a paneled wood door, % sidelights, pilasters, and blind, wide band, overhead transom.
A flat roofed, Queen Anne front porch across full width of the gable front features a projecting
molded cornice, wide band frieze with spindled valance, supported by fan brackets, and wood %2
posts resting on spindled balustrade. The skirt below the porch floor is pierced with geometric
cut-outs. East and west walls are lighted by 2.2 sash. Fenestration on the rear gable includes a
large rectangular louvered attic opening, one 6/6 lazy window in left bay under the eaves, and
one regular 1/1 sash in right bay. There is one brick chimney on the east roof slope. Access to the
wing is via two doors on its east facade, one in each bay. The door in the right bay is flanked by
a 1/1 sash on its right. Also on the wing’s east facade, a porch beneath the roof overhang features
turned wood support posts and scroll-sawn brackets. The left half of the west facade is lighted by
a three part window consisting of a 6-pained sash flanked by 2-paned sidelights. The right half of
the wall has a modern, double casement window. The wing has one brick ridge chimney. Barn
windows are all 6-light fixed sash in full and smaller sizes. The east fagade has one full sized
sash in left bay. The center and right bays are open. The upper story, right bay contains small,
batten board, hinged door. The west facade repeats this door on both upper and lower levels of
the left bay. The door on lower level is larger and flanked by one full sized sash. Right bay
contains smaller sash. Barn’s rear gable also light by smaller sash. Attached to barn’s rear gable
is single story shed with synthetic, lean-to roof and metal siding. One detached exterior cement
block chimney is connected by flue pipe to the barn’s west fagade. (Photo 50)

129. 31 Bridge St., c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, south facing gable front, 1 “%-story, 3x3-bay main block with a single story,
2x2-bay, gable roofed wing attached to the main block’s north facing rear wall, and a 1 %2-story,
2x2-bay gable roofed barn attached to the wing’s north facing rear wall. The barn’s east wall is
recessed behind the wing’s east wall. The main block has a metal roof, clapboard siding, wood
trim, and stone foundation with wide eaves, frieze boards, and corner boards. There is a small,
louvered attic opening in the gable peak of the front facade as well as two 1/1 sash in the upper
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gable wall in simple molded frames. There are two tall (full-story), wood framed, 8-light
windows on first story, left and center bays. In the right bay is the entry made of a narrow,
paneled and lighted replacement door surrounded by vertical boarding in place of sidelights and
the left pilaster. The right pilaster remains. A single story, flat roofed, full width front porch has
a solid, shingled 2 wall. The side elevations are lighted by 6/6 double hung sash, 3 on east side
and 5 on west. There is one brick chimney on the west roof slope. The wing has asphalt shingle
roofing and clapboard siding. On the east side is an enclosed porch lighted by 6/6 ribbon sash.
There is also a small louvered window and door on the left. On the west side of the wing are two
6/6 sash. There is one brick chimney on the west roof slope. The barn has a metal roof and
clapboard siding. The barn’s east wall has a batten board, hinged door on the upper story. Below
is a double width, paneled and lighted sliding door with a plain, wide wood frame. On the west
side, first story, are two, 6-light, fixed sash windows. (Photo 51)

130. 33 Bridge Street, c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, south facing gable front, 1 %2-story main block with 1-story, 1x2-bay gable
roofed wing attached to center and right bays of main block’s north facing rear wall. There is
asphalt shingle roofing and vinyl siding throughout. The main block foundation is stone parged
with cement. There are overhanging eaves and frieze boards. The main block, front gable end has
a triangular, louvered attic opening. Two upper story windows are 6/1 double hung sash. The
front entry on the first story, left bay, is made of a paneled, lighted door surrounded by %
sidelights, paneled reveals, and molded architrave trim with plain corner blocks. A shed hood
over the entry porch is supported by square wood posts. To the right of the door, the front
facade’s main wall is concealed by enclosed porch with shed roof, vinyl siding, and six 1/1
aluminum windows. The east wall is lighted by two 6/1 sash in left bay and two replacement
windows in the right bay. There is a gable dormer projecting from the east roof slope. The west
wall is lighted by three 6/1 sash. The rear wing’s east elevation has gable dormer and modern
replacement windows. On the wings west facade, there are two windows and a modern door with
a small gable over the door. The wing’s rear facade, upper story, is lighted by a casement
window and sliding glass doors on the first story. There are brick chimneys on the east slope of
both the main and wing roofs. (Photo 52)

131. 37 Bridge Street, c. 1850. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, 1 ¥-story, 3x2-bay south facing main block with Gothic style cross-gable
roof. 1-story, 2x2-bay gable roofed wing attached to the north facing rear wall and a 1 Y%-story,
2x3-bay garage/barn attached to the wing’s north facing rear wall. The east facing walls of the
wing and garage/barn are recessed behind the main block’s east wall. There is asphalt shingle
roofing, vinyl siding, wood and vinyl trim, and stone foundation as well as projecting eaves and
frieze boards throughout. The main block’s windows are all 2/2 double hung sash with peaked
lintel boards. The is one window in the eaves front gable peak and four taller windows on the
first story, two each flanking a centered double leaf door surmounted by peaked lintel board and
framed by molded architrave trim. The porch along the full width of the front fagade is covered
by a flat roof with a projecting cornice and frieze supported by bracket posts which in turn rest
on a solid, shingled % wall. Both the east and west facades of the main block are lighted by two
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upper and two lower story windows. There is a brick ridge chimney on the east cross gable. The
rear wing’s windows are 2/2 sash. The wing’s east facade features a shed dormer with a triple
window. The left bay of the east facade contains a door and two sash; all three have peaked lintel
boards. The right bay contains two sash with plain surround. The first story of the west facade is
lighted by three sash. Also on the west side is a glass enclosed porch with shed roof and shingled
Y wall. The wing has one brick ridge chimney. The garage/barn fenestration on the east facade
includes a lighted board and batten door on the upper level, center bay, and one sash in the left
bay. On the first story are paneled and lighted overhead sliding garage doors in the right bay, a
wood door in the center bay, and one sash in the left bay. (Photo 53)

131a. Garage, c. 1920. Contributing.

This is a 1-story, 1-bay, garage with asphalt shingled gable roof, clapboard siding. It has
projecting molded cornice, frieze and corner boards and a 1-bay shed addition on the east facing
eaves wall. (No photo)

132. 39 Bridge Street, c. 1900. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, south facing gable front, 1 ¥2-story 3x3-bay main block with a 1-story, 1x1-
bay, gable roofed wing extending from the north facing rear wall and a second, 1 %2-story, 2x1-
bay gable roofed wing extending from the first wing’s north facing rear wall. The east facing
walls of the main block and two wings are contiguous. The main block has asphalt shingle
roofing, asbestos siding, stone foundation, projecting eaves and frieze boards. The front facade,
upper story, has a triangular, louvered attic opening and two 1/1 double hung sash windows in
the gable. On the first story, there are taller 6/6 sash with wide lintel boards in each right and
center bays. The front door in the left bay is slightly recessed behind the main wall and
surrounded by % sidelights, paneled reveals, and molded architrave trim. There is an aluminum
storm door over a wood door. The full-width front porch is covered by an overhanging shed roof,
supported by square wood half-posts which in turn rest on a clapboard-sided %2 wall. There is a
simple bracketed gable hood over the porch steps. The east facade features a shed dormer with
paired 6-light windows. On the first story, in the first two bays, are two 6/6 sash; in the third bay
is paired 1/1 sash. The west facade had two 1/1 sash in the left bay. The first wing has asphalt
shingle roofing and asbestos siding. The east and west walls are lighted each by one slender 6/6
sash. The second wing has asphalt shingle roofing and clapboard siding. The south facing gable
is lighted by a lazy window. The east facing eaves front has an aluminum door on left and a full-
width porch, resembling the front porch. The west facade has modern windows and a door with a
small, louvered gable above. There is one brick chimney on the east slope of the main roof.
(Photo 54)

133. Pump Station, 38 Bridge Street, c. 1990. Non-contributing due to age.

This is a modern, brick, 1-story, gable-roofed pump station has a door centered on the east
facade flanked by two modern windows. The gable end has vinyl siding above the brick and
additional doors and ventilation louvers. (Photo 55)
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134. Second Toll House, 42 Bridge Street, c. 1866. Contributing.

This is a vernacular, north facing eaves front, 2-story, 5x3-bay main block with a 1 %.-story, 1x1-
bay ell attached to right bay of east facing gable wall and a 1-story, 1x2-bay shed roofed
extension on south facing rear wall main block and ell have asphalt shingle roofing, vinyl siding,
vinyl and aluminum trim, and stone foundation. There are deep, overhanging eaves, corner
boards, and cornice returns. Except where noted, windows are 2.2 double hung sash in aluminum
frames. The main block’s primary facade, with front entry facing the street, is the north facing
eaves wall. Eaves on this fagade are interrupted by two gabled wall dormers, each containing one
sash window. Also, there is one Queen Anne window centered on the main wall between the
wall dormers. On the first story there are two windows on either side of a paneled and lighted
wood door. This entry is enclosed by a small contemporary porch sheathed with lattice, covered
with metal gable roof, and accessed by aluminum storm door. The west facing gable has a
louvered attic opening above two sash. There are three sash on the first story. The east facing
gable has a louvered attic opening above one small sash flanked by two larger sash.

On the first story, left bay, is one sash while the center bay contains one sash beside a lighted,
paneled door. Attached to the right bay of the east wall is an ell. The ell’s north gable wall faces
the road. It is lighted by one upper story sash. The ell’s east facing wall has two sash on the first
story while the west wall, first story, has one sash. The rear extension’s entry is located on the
west side. The extension’s south facing rear wall is lighted by three 1/1 sash with one 1/1 sash on
the east wall. There is one brick ridge chimney on the main roof. This was constructed at about
the time of the present Windsor-Cornish Covered Bridge in 1866 as the toll house. It was used to
take tolls until they were abolished in the 1930s. (Photo 56)

134a. Garage, c. 1920. Contributing.

This is a single story, 2x1-bay, gable front garage with metal roof, vinyl siding and trim. Deep
cornices and corner boards. Two sets of double leafed doors on the north facing gable front are
hinged, with vertical boards on lower half. Each leaf has 8-light multi-paned windows in the
upper half. There is a plain vinyl surround on the doors and one 6-light fixed sash on the west
facade. A garage extension from the rear left bay is a 1-story, 2x1-bay with gable front, metal
roof, vinyl siding and trim. It has deep cornices and corner boards. The door in the left bay of the
gable front has vertical boards on lower % and a 6-light window in the upper %. (No photo)

135. 43 Bridge Street, c. 1925. Contributing.

This is a small, south facing gable front, 1-story, 3x2-bay building with standing seam metal
roofing, stucco walls, and concrete foundation. The front gable facade features a centered, multi-
paned door flanked by paired 6/6 sash. The door and entry are covered by a single story hipped
roof porch with screened openings and stucco lower walls. Sidelight-like screens flank the door.
There is a rectangular louvered vent in the gable peak. On the east facade, there are two 6/6 sash
in the rear bay. On the west fagade, there is one centered, standard sized 6/6 sash and one small,
6-light fixed sash in the rear bay, located high up on the wall. There is a brick chimney on the
east roof slope. (Photo 57)
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135a. Garage, c. 1925. Contributing.

This is a single story, 4x1-bay wide across eaves front garage with metal gable roof, exposed
rafter tails, and clapboard siding. It has horizontal sliding doors made of vertical boards. (No
photo)

136. First Toll House, 45 Bridge Street, 1796. Contributing.

This is a south facing, gable front, 1 1/2-story, 3x5-bay frame house with single story 1x1 bay
wing attached to the north facing rear wall. The vernacular main block has an asphalt shingled
gable roof, vinyl siding, wood and vinyl trim, and stone foundation. The windows are 2/2 double
hung sash with simple surrounds. The gable front facade fenestration is slightly asymmetrical
with two small windows in the upper gable wall and a window on each side of the front door.
The east facade is lighted by four windows. On the west facade, a door in the 3rd bay is flanked
by two sash on left and one sash on the right. There is a brick chimney on the west roof slope.
The wing has a flat roof and vinyl siding. The west facade has a wood paneled door under a
bracketed, pedimented gable and one sash. There is a screen door on the rear facade. An exterior,
2-story brick chimney on the west wall includes an open hearth. The main block and wing each
have open wood decking on the east facade. By 2011 the vinyl siding and trim had been removed
and replaced with clapboards and wood trim.

As a residence for the past 200 years, it has undergone many major alterations on the interior
with new walls, staircases, and wall and floor finishes, and on the exterior with new 19th century
windows and doors. The current exterior doors on the street gable fagade and on the west facade
central entrance appear to be in the Italianate tradition and date from c. 1870. An 1886 engraving
showing a birds-eye view of Windsor, shows the house with its one story rear kitchen addition.
There is a massive central brick chimney which originally served several hearths and a bake
oven, including a fireplace in the basement. These hearths had been closed up and some 19th
century wood/coal stove thimbles had been installed above them. The basement is probably the
most intact original space in the entire house and should be considered the most historically
significant space as it may have extant features original to the house’s use as a toll house such as
the fireplace and an entrance door that was formerly at grade and a “toll window” next to it in the
brick wall. On the first and second floors, the finishes and plaster/lath date from different time
periods. There are many walls with accordion-style lath and plaster that may date to the original
construction or be as late as the mid-19th century depending upon the inclination of the
particular plasterer. Other walls have sawn lath and many have layers of wall paper. There are
some areas in the first floor front room and side vestibule that may have had original horizontal
plank wainscoting or solid wood paneling around the fireplaces.

The house was originally built in 1796 as a toll-keepers house for the first Windsor-Cornish
covered bridge. It was likely used as a toll house until 1866 when the 4th and present bridge was
constructed along with a new toll house and toll-keepers house (134) across the street. By 1869,
the old toll house was still owned by “the Bridge Co.” but was likely rented or sold soon after
that as a private residence. (Photo 58)
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137. 5 Acme Street (a.k.a. Jarvis Street), c. 1860-1890. Contributing.

This is a simple five bay, 2¥2-story "Georgian Plan™ house with vinyl siding, cornice returns, six
over one windows, and corner boards. Former Greek Revival window trim with a cap appears
altered for the installation of the vinyl siding. The house has a tin roof, double interior chimneys,
tiny gabled central wall dormer/rain diverter over the entry in centered on the eaves side. It is
similar in massing and form to # 17 Jarvis (139), although it is deeper, and has a recessed two
story corner porch facing the river within the main gable roof line. This was a double house in
1999 and has since had its double entry converted to a single door. By 2011 a gable roofed entry
porch had been added. (Photo 59)

138. 13 Acme Street (a.k.a. Jarvis Street), c. 1860. Contributing.

This is a simple gable front Greek Revival 2%-story, two-family house. It has Greek Revival trim
on a clapboard exterior with a one story columned front porch over a central double entry, two
over two windows, standing seam roof, cornice returns, and corner boards. It is set slightly back
from the street flanked by # 5 (137) and #17 Jarvis (139) Street on either side and sits at the head
of the intersection of Foster Avenue and Jarvis Street. By 2011 it had vinyl siding and 1/1
replacement windows. (Photo 60)

139. 17 Acme Street ( a.k.a. Jarvis Street), c. 1860 — 1880. Contributing.

This is a simple 2%2-story Georgian Plan house with vinyl siding, cornice returns, two over two
windows, modern metal roof, single chimney, full length one story front porch with Victorian
trim and posts, a single center entry on porch, and a large rear dormered wing with a second
entrance off the side. It is similar in form to #5 Jarvis Street (137) but not as deep. By 2011 it had
1/1 replacement windows. (Photo 61)

NOTE: JARVIS/ACME STREET

The rest of the houses on Jarvis Street were originally identical and were all built by the National
Acme Company. In this neighborhood created by the company there are two types of houses.
Each of those types had two different variations. These are described in the statement of
significance as Types A, B, C. & D.

On Jarvis/Acme Street only Type A houses are found. This type is described generally below:

Type A. 1916-18

Type A is a very small frame gable front 1 1/2 story clapboard house. A single second floor/attic
window is centered in the gable, underneath on the first floor front facade are one window on the
left and a door on the right. The house is one room wide and approximately three rooms deep
(about 12" by 30"). Originally each had a simple shed roof front porch with turned posts. The
original windows appear to be two over two sash and the roof was likely tin sheeting laid
horizontally in line with the ridge. These houses were spaced approximately ten feet apart and
lined both sides of Acme Street from Cross Street south to the end and are also found on
National Street north of Cross Street.
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The individual Type A houses on Jarvis Street are only briefly described in the inventory as they
are largely identical. Some of the original houses have been demolished.

140. 24 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Asphalt roof, yellow aluminum siding, porch/entry enclosed with aluminum
siding, wood, and two over two windows. (Photo 62)

141. 27 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A house . Brown shingle siding, metal ribbed roof, new windows, picture window on first
floor, porch/entry replaced with smaller, shingle sided enclosed shed entry. (Photo 63)

142. 28 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Original clapboard siding, with metal ribbed roofing and replacement windows.
Porch/entry enclosed with clapboard and six over six windows. (Photo 64)

143. 29 Jarvis Street, 1916-19(?), 1970-90. Non-contributing due to alterations.

Small, 1¥2-story cape, gable end to street with entrance on side, vinyl siding, asphalt shingle roof
with small dormers, modern windows. This is either a new house or this Type A has been
expanded and altered in all directions. (Photo 65)

144. 30 Jarvis Street , 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Original windows, vertical wood siding, asphalt shingle roofing, porch/entry
enclosed with T-111 and six over six windows. (Photo 66)

145. 34 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Original windows, vinyl siding, new ribbed steel roof, porch replaced with small
gable roofed vestibule with half walls around door. (Photo 67)

146. 36 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Vinyl siding, windows replaced, new ribbed steel roof, porch/entry enclosed with
vinyl siding and windows. ((Photo 68)

147. 37 Jarvis Street , 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Some original windows, many replaced, asphalt shingle roof in a diamond
pattern, asbestos shingle siding, porch removed although flat trim boards on the fagade outline its
location. By 2011, metal ribbed roof, rubble stone siding on south and west elevations with wide
clapboards in front gable and along north and south eaves. North elevation retains asbestos
shingle siding below clapboards and rubble siding at base. New doors. (Photo 69)

148. 38 Jarvis Street , 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house . Original windows, vinyl siding, asphalt shingle roof in mottled brown tones,
porch/entry enclosed with vertical wood siding and screens/windows. (Photo 68)

Section 7 page 56



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Windsor Village Historic District (Additional Windsor, Vermont
Documentation and Boundary Increase, 2014)

Name of Property County and State

149. 39 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Some original windows, vinyl siding, asphalt shingle roof, porch/entry enclosed
with vinyl siding - no windows. (Photo 70)

150. 41 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Some original windows, vinyl siding, asphalt shingle roof, large central wall
shed dormer, wing with shed roof added on one side, porch/entry enclosed with vinyl siding and
windows. (Photo 70)

151. 44 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. New slider style windows, vinyl siding, metal ribbed roofing, porch/entry
enclosed with vinyl siding and windows. (Photo 71)

152. 45 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original clapboard, standing seam steel roof with shed dormer, new windows,
new fascia boards, porch/entry enclosed with several miscellaneous siding materials. By 2011
there was an 8 pane casement window in the front gable and a pair on front elevation of the
enclosed porch. (Photo 72)

153. 47 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Some original windows, fairly old standing seam tin roof, gray asbestos shingle
siding, porch/entry enclosed with vinyl siding and paired windows. (Photo 73)

154. 49 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Asphalt shingle siding in a staggered pattern, asphalt shingle roof, some windows
replaced, porch/entry enclosed with several miscellaneous materials and windows. (Photo 73)

155. 50 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original windows. Gray asphalt shingle siding in a staggered pattern, asphalt
shingle roof, porch/entry enclosed with clapboard siding and windows. By 2011 building had
vinyl siding, replacement windows, dormer on north roof slope which has cornice returns, front
porch converted to gable roofed 2x1 bay living space. (Photo 74)

155a. Shed, c. 2009, Non-contributing due to age.
Two story narrow, gable roofed, vinyl sided shed at rear of lot. Glass and panel pedestrian door
with hinged, wooden full-size double loft doors above. (No photo)

156. 52 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Gray asphalt shingle siding in a staggered pattern, asphalt shingle roof, windows
missing, porch/entry enclosed with particle board and broken windows and covered in black
plastic. Unoccupied. By 2011, vinyl sided with replacement windows. (Photo 74)
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157. 54 Jarvis Street, c. 2009. Non-contributing due to age.

Originally a Type A, house, c. 1916-19919 stood on this lot. It had original clapboard siding,
windows, and roofing. Porch/entry enclosed with plywood, clapboard, and lattice. By 2011 this
building had been removed and replaced with a 11/2 story, left side hall, gable front dwelling
with garage incorporated on the first floor. It has a large pedimented door hood and shed roof
dormers on each roof slope. (Photo 75)

158. 56 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original windows, vinyl siding, metal roof, porch/entry enclosed with vinyl
siding and windows, small round arch roof added over door. By 2011 porch windows had been
removed. (Photo 75)

158a. Garage, c. 2009. Non-contributing due to age.
1 Y% story gable front garage with T-111 siding, concrete block foundation, asphalt shingle roof.
Overhead garage door with pedestrian door to the right. (No photo)

159. 57 Jarvis Street, 1980-90. Non-contributing due to age.

Non-contributing due to age and context. Angled shed roof, modern design, with unpainted wood
clapboard siding, a corner porch entry, bay window, and vertical rectangular single light
stationary windows. By 2011, sliding glass doors on right end of front elevation with bank of 6
awning windows above. (Photo 76)

160. 64 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original windows, clapboard siding, & trim with asphalt roof, porch structure
replaced with enclosed newer porch using vertical wood boards and miscellaneous windows.
(Photo 77)

161. 66 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original windows, roof raised with shallower pitch, metal roofing, tar paper
shingle siding, porch/entry enclosed with wood frame sheathed in plywood with windows.
(Photo 77)

162. 68 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original windows, clapboard siding, trim, and asphalt shingle roof. Large cross
gabled ell to the side with diagonal board siding and a small bay window. A small gable shed is
attached to the southwest corner of the ell. The porch is similar to original with dimensional
lumber for posts. By 2011 porch had been enclosed. (Photo 78)

163. 72 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original clapboard siding and trim with tar paper roofing, replacement windows,
porch/entry enclosed with clapboards and a picture window. (Photo 78)
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164. 74 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.

Type A, house. Original clapboard siding and trim. Tar paper roofing, replacement windows,
porch enclosed with T-111 siding, a picture window and no door. A side window was turned into
the door. In 2011 this building was being demolished. (Photo 79)

165. 76 Jarvis Street, 1916-19. Contributing.
Type A, house. Original windows, clapboard siding and trim, asphalt shingle roofing, porch
structure replaced with dimensional lumber and new railings. (Photo 79)

166. Located in the Amendment Area — see description on page 29

NOTE: NATIONAL STREET

All the houses on National Street were originally built by the National Acme Company. In this
neighborhood created by the company there are two types of houses. Each of those types had two
different variations. These are described in the statement of significance as Types A, B, C. & D.

On National Street types A and B are found. These two types are described generally below

Type A. 1916-18

Type A is a very small frame gable front 1 1/2 story clapboard house. A single second floor/attic
window is centered in the gable, underneath on the first f